

9/27/2012

Page 1

STATE OF MICHIGAN
DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING

PAGE 1 TO 50

Taken at 7310 Woodward,
Central District,
Detroit, Michigan, 48226,
Commencing at 6:09 p.m.,
Thursday, September 27th, 2012,
Before Elizabeth Koller, CSR-7042.

1 APPEARANCES:
2 MS. CELIA BANKS WASHINGTON (P54338)
3 Attorney to the Board
4 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
5 1300 Beaubien, Room 328
6 Detroit, Michigan 48226
7 (313) 596-1835
8 Appearing on behalf of the Board of Police
9 Commissioners.

10

11 COMMISSIONERS:
12 JEROME WARFIELD, CHAIRMAN
13 DONNELL WHITE, REGULAR MEMBER
14 JESSICA TAYLOR, VICE CHAIRPERSON

15

16 ALSO PRESENT:
17 GEORGE ANTHONY, SECRETARY
18 BENJAMIN LEE, DEPUTY CHIEF

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 September 27, 2012
3 About 3:04 p.m.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Good afternoon, ladies
5 and gentlemen. Welcome to the Board of Police
6 Commissioners Meeting. My name is Jerome Warfield,
7 Chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners. Also
8 serving with me today is Commissioner Donnell White,
9 and representing the Chief's Office is Deputy Chief
10 Benjamin Lee.

11 We're going to ask if our Board Secretary
12 Mr. George Anthony will introduce our staff at this
13 time.

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
15 For the record, George Anthony, Secretary to the Board.
16 We have present Ms. Pamela Davis Drake who is our Chief
17 Investigator, Ms. Loletha Porter, who is our Director
18 of Police Personnel, Ms. Celia Banks Washington, who is
19 the Attorney to the Board, Mr. Robert Brown who is our
20 Office Manager, Sergeant Alan Quinn who's recording our
21 proceedings, and Ms. Elizabeth Koller from Hanson Court
22 Reporting Services. That completes the introductions.

23 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, sir, I
24 certainly appreciate that. Of course we do not have
25 quorum at this time, so we're going to move forward

1 until we do get quorum with the presentation that we
2 can have and then when we do receive quorum we'll move
3 toward our voting matters at that time.

4 Right now I'm going to ask if Pastor Devay
5 Myatt could come and lead us in our invocation. He is
6 also a Chaplain for the Detroit Police Department.
7 Good to see you, sir.

8 PASTOR MYATT: Thank you, sir. I'll take
9 this time to bless you. Heavenly Father, we bless you
10 and we thank you, God, as we come before you today. We
11 yield our thoughts and hearts to you because you are
12 the wise God that knows all things.

13 We pray, God, for your blessing upon this
14 Board. We ask your blessings upon those that have come
15 today. We ask, God, that you would lead us and direct
16 us in all ways of truth. In Jesus name. Amen.

17 AUDIENCE: Amen.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Pastor, we
19 appreciate that. Moving onto the Chairman's report and
20 then we will come back to the voting items later.

21 Certainly we want to thank all of you for
22 your patients. We're meeting here today because of the
23 baseball game downtown so that we would not incur an
24 extra hardship on those who wanted to come to the
25 meeting to pay \$40.00 to see us, we think that's a bit

1 pricey for admission, and so we thank you all for just
2 adjusting your schedules and coming here today. Also
3 we want to say that were very very proud and pleased of
4 the outstanding work that the men and women of the
5 Detroit Police Department are doing.

6 They're operating under some very difficult
7 times without question. But the fact that the reports
8 that we receive that they're still, you know, showing
9 up doing their job and doing it in a very professional
10 way. So certainly we want to thank you to the
11 Commanders, Sergeants, Lieutenants, and the men and
12 woman on the street that are answering and handling
13 calls in a very professional manner.

14 At this time, Mr. Secretary, do you have a
15 report?

16 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Yes, sir, there's a
17 Secretary's Report on citizen complaints. The citizen
18 complaints received for August of 2012 the monthly
19 count of complaints was for August, 91, compared to the
20 same period of 2011 of 132 which represents a
21 48 percent decrease. The year-to-date figures are 882
22 for 2012 and 894 for 2011 which represents a 17 percent
23 decrease.

24 At the end of August 2012 the Office of the
25 Chief Investigator had open investigations 221, cases

1 filed year-to-date was 882, cases closed year-to-date
2 was 1,361. Of the 91 cases filed in August 2012,
3 26 involve unknown officers, the alleged known units
4 involved leading in complaints filed in August 2012
5 were the 6th Percent at 13 percent, Eastern District at
6 12 percent, and the Northeastern District at 6 percent.

7 The 91 cases filed in August 2012 involve 179
8 allegations where the leading areas of concern were
9 demeanor at 28 percent, procedure at 27 percent,
10 service at 16 percent, and force at 14 percent. That
11 concludes the report.

12 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Secretary.
13 Any questions, Commissioner White?

14 COMMISSIONER WHITE: None.

15 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I just have a couple.
16 What does our 90 day caseload look like?

17 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, I think that
18 report is coming, to be coming from our Chief
19 Investigator. She will give us an update on that.

20 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Okay. And then I guess
21 also, Chief Investigator, as you prepare for that as
22 well, could you enlighten us again on force as relates
23 to, if you can't maybe Ms. Washington can, because I
24 know she's been in discussions with the monitors and
25 the Department on this as relates to what cases our

1 Investigators are supposed to look into as relates to
2 force allegations? Has that line of demarcation been
3 drawn so that we're very clear on what our
4 Investigators should look into versus which should go
5 over to IA? Okay. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.

6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: You're welcome, sir.

7 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm going to go over to
8 Deputy Chief Benjamin Lee and ask him for his report at
9 this time for us.

10 D.C. LEE: Thank you. We do have a
11 presentation from Sex Crimes from Sergeant Marvin Jones
12 who will be doing the presentation.

13 SERGEANT JONES: Good afternoon, everyone.
14 Sergeant Jones, I'm from Sex Crimes, and I'll be doing
15 a brief presentation regarding the scope of the tasks
16 that we have at Sex Crimes. I don't have a clicker to
17 go to the next slide.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Can somebody sit at the
19 computer and just click it for us? Thank you, ma'am.

20 SERGEANT JONES: Okay. Responsibility for
21 Sex Crimes is to investigate all allegations of sexual
22 assault. Any false felony reports is punishable by
23 imprisonment. What we like to do, we prosecute all
24 offenders. We have a victim assistants program which
25 goes out and assists us with locating our victims,

1 provide them with any kind of counseling they have and
2 they also assist homicide and child abuse and domestic
3 violence.

4 Something that we like to do, someone had to
5 report the crime and it is never too late to report a
6 sexual assault. Wayne County Safe: We are in
7 partnership with Wayne County Safe whereas we have all
8 of our sexual assault victims respond to Wayne County
9 Safe which is in Detroit Receiving Hospital and they go
10 there for their examinations.

11 When we receive a phone call regarding
12 allegations of a sexual assault the first thing we like
13 to do is a case draft to find out all the pertinent
14 information and find out the proper direction we need
15 to go in.

16 We complete what we call a crime scene
17 notification which is sent up through our chain through
18 our superiors to notify them of everything that's going
19 on. Once we've completed that mission we head out and
20 talk to all of our victims, any witnesses that we have,
21 and make sure that they seek medical attention.

22 We then canvas the area, make sure if there's
23 any video in the area, document the time that the video
24 was observed, and if there was anything captured on the
25 video. We then turn the video over to Sergeant Gibson

1 or Sergeant Johnson who retrieves the video for us and
2 they'll make a disc for us and send it back over to Sex
3 Crimes.

4 After we've completed what we call a crime
5 scene investigation package which is for our superiors
6 and the Officer in charge of the case which is our
7 Crisnet Report which is the preliminary report that is
8 taken from the Officers who responded to the scene, all
9 our witness statements, our sexual assault kit
10 information, medical records, and the package itself is
11 turned over to the Officer in charge with any further
12 work that is needed.

13 In the instance where there's further
14 information that we need and we have the perpetrator in
15 custody, we type search warrants for homes, an buckle
16 swab. A buckle swab is like a giant Q-tip where we
17 utilize to swab the interior of someone's mouth to link
18 them to the possible sexual assault kit that was
19 collected at the hospital.

20 We also complete photo lineups and live
21 lineups. We prefer to do live lineups when someone is
22 in custody. Matter of fact, it's mandatory that we do
23 live lineups when someone is in custody. But when
24 someone is not in custody and we have a person of
25 interest we'll put together a photo array and show it

1 to our victims.

2 We also like to interrogate all our suspects.
3 We have very knowledgeable men and women over at Sex
4 Crimes that can get some pretty good confessions at
5 times. The last thing that we do is type an
6 investigative report that has to go over to the Wayne
7 County Prosecutors Office with all the work that we did
8 to build a case against the suspect.

9 Once that is completed, once the person is
10 charged if charged then we'll complete what we call a
11 sexually motivated crime report which goes to the
12 Michigan State Police and that's how all our offenders
13 end up on the Sex Offender Registry.

14 SAK stands for Sexual Assault Kit and
15 biological evidence to the crime lab which essentially
16 means that our buckle swap that we've obtained, any
17 physical evidences and sexual assault kit we submitted
18 to the lab.

19 Criminal Sexual Conduct in the first degree
20 is a felony and it is punishable by up to life
21 imprisonment. The person had to be at least 13 and
22 under, and at least the age of 16 and above, in
23 addition if the crime is committed during the
24 commission of another felony. For example, if someone
25 doesn't fit the criteria of 13 years old, if it's a

1 victim that's 16, if a weapon is used then that is also
2 criminal sexual conduct in the first degree. Also if
3 the perpetrator is a family member or in position of
4 authority, i.e., teacher, employers, and things of
5 such.

6 Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Second Degree
7 is essentially like Criminal Sexual in the First Degree
8 but this involves touching. The same rules apply for
9 Criminal Sexual Conduct in the first degree but like I
10 say it involves touching where you're touching vital
11 parts of someone body.

12 Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Third Degree
13 is punishable for not more than 15 years. It's
14 commonly known as statutory rape. The victim here is
15 over the age of 13 years old, it's a known perpetrator,
16 and the age of consent in the State of Michigan is
17 16 years of age, and there's no exceptions to that.

18 Criminal Sexual Conduct: It's a misdemeanor.
19 It is punishable by up to two years in jail, and the
20 victim is over the age of 13 years old. The statute of
21 limitation: After May the 2nd, 2002 the statute of
22 limitations have changed. For Criminal Sexual Conduct
23 in the First Degree there is no statute of limitations.

24 For criminal sexual conduct two, three, four,
25 attempted CSC, sexual abuse activity to children when a

1 defendant is known, it is ten years after the incident
2 or the victim's 21st birthday whichever is later.

3 When DNA is from a suspect then there's no
4 statute of limitations. When the defendant is
5 identified through DNA, i.e., a CODIS hit, it's ten
6 years after the ID of the victim's 21st birthday.

7 Other sexual assault, date rape, GHB, which
8 is gamma-hydroxybutyric acid, is it commonly known as
9 GHB. It impairs the victim powerless and they're not
10 able to think properly when someone has given them that
11 drug and they tend to do things that they don't
12 normally do.

13 We also handled quite a few domestic violence
14 marital home rapes whereas we get a call, husband,
15 wife, feel like that he can do whatever he wants to do
16 to the wife and proceeds to sexually assault her. We
17 get quite a few of those here at Sex Crimes. Indecent
18 exposing is just that, when someone exposes their vital
19 parts to anyone out in the general public.

20 These are some of our community initiatives.
21 Like I said, victim assistance which formally was known
22 as rape counseling. Now we're all encompassing the
23 same building over at 1151 Taylor, Building 6, right
24 over at Herman Kiefer where there's child abuse,
25 domestic violence and sex crimes and victim assistance.

1 They're a stones throw away from us and we
2 can pick up the phone any time and contact them so that
3 they can actually interview some of our victims when
4 they're having a hard time making a statement.

5 Wayne County Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner
6 which is essentially what we talked about before is
7 Wayne County Safe. They're at Detroit Receiving
8 Hospital. They're also opening up a new facility over
9 at Grace Hospital. Like I said, they do all of our
10 forensic examinations for our victims.

11 The people that are conducting the
12 examinations are called Sexual Assault Nursing
13 Examiners which is the same. They are also licensed
14 nurses, nurse examiners, and they do a pretty good job
15 helping us with our victims.

16 Kids Talk Forensic: Kids Talk is a forensic
17 interview of victims that are 12 years and under and
18 the perpetrator is at least 17 and above. These are
19 for all known perpetrator cases, which they're
20 encompassed over at 40 East Ferry. We'll schedule an
21 appointment for the child. We'll take her over or him
22 where there's a videotaped interview. When we go over
23 we like to have one of the investigators, a prosecutor,
24 and a CPS worker that will sit in on every interview so
25 that no leading questions can be asked to the child and

1 this cuts out the child being interviewed multiple
2 times.

3 That's going to conclude my presentation at
4 this time. If you have any questions feel free to ask.

5 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, sir,
6 appreciate that. Commissioner White?

7 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you, Sergeant
8 Jones, for that presentation. One question for you.
9 Are you able to articulate sex crimes and department
10 caseload how it's trended over the last two to three
11 years?

12 SERGEANT JONES: Over the last two to three
13 years, now right for cases that have been reported as
14 of last night we were at 1,089 reported sexual
15 assaults. There has been a spike in sexual assaults
16 over the past three years for this particular time. I
17 believe last year we were around 950 and the year
18 before that we were around 900.

19 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So at this point for the
20 year?

21 SERGEANT JONES: Yes, we're like ten percent
22 over reported sexual assaults.

23 COMMISSIONER WHITE: And annual, what has
24 been our annual number for the previous two years?

25 SERGEANT JONES: Around 1,400 reported sexual

1 assaults.

2 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you, sir.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Sir, just a couple
4 questions, as relates. Certainly when you have in your
5 presentation the community outreach that you do is
6 there a number that citizens can call, neighborhood
7 groups, and others if they wanted you or someone from
8 your department to come out and talk to them about the
9 subject?

10 SERGEANT JONES: Yes, sir, area code (313)
11 596-1950.

12 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Again, that number is
13 (313) 596-1950?

14 SERGEANT JONES: Yes, sir, that's the direct
15 line to Sex Crimes.

16 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And do you all talk about
17 prevention as well?

18 SERGEANT JONES: Yes, we do, sir.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: In addition to that as
20 relates to the virtual precincts model could you talk
21 to us about when you all go out versus when people
22 might have to go in and make a report? How does that
23 work?

24 SERGEANT JONES: Well, once someone makes a
25 report, if the Officers are on the scene and they

1 contact us we go out to all scenes. If someone is
2 reporting at the precinct we like for him to come down
3 to the unit or we'll respond to the precinct.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Refresh us, where's the
5 unit located again?

6 SERGEANT JONES: 1141 Taylor, Building 6.

7 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: In the Herman Kiefer?

8 SERGEANT JONES: It's on the complex directly
9 behind Herman Kiefer the main building.

10 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Anything else? Okay.
11 Thank you, sir, we certainly appreciate it.

12 SERGEANT JONES: Thank you.

13 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Deputy Chief, did you
14 have anything else?

15 D.C. LEE: No, that concludes the Chief's
16 Report.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: We are, of course,
18 expecting a quorum. Again, when we do receive a quorum
19 we will go cover the voting matters.

20 However, there is something that came up to
21 our attention, Deputy Chief, from Council Member Brenda
22 Jones and this is regarding a situation where she was
23 at the car wash and was informed while she was there
24 someone was cutting the wires and trying to steal
25 copper.

1 Unfortunately they did not get a good police
2 response from the Department. And she has this as a
3 line item on their agenda for Monday, October the 8th,
4 and so I'm going to pass this over to you and if you
5 can prepare a response for them and you might want to
6 reach out to them as relates to that particular
7 incident, and it's on that second page.

8 D.C. LEE: Thank you.

9 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: You're welcome. Again,
10 we'll come back with several matters in a moment after
11 we get a quorum. But at this time we want to open up
12 the floor for oral communications. If you wish to
13 address the Board of Police Commissioners you may come
14 to the podium, give us your name, and we ask that you
15 abide by our two-minute time limit so that we can hear
16 from as many people as we can. Yes, you may come at
17 this time, absolutely.

18 MR. TERRY: Good afternoon, good evening. My
19 name is Ishmal Terry and I am the CEO of All For One.
20 We're a nonprofit organization here in the City of
21 Detroit, Wayne County, and Washtanaw County. We have
22 the dubious task to be working with President Obama and
23 their task force. We were chosen to be a part of that
24 administration and within that we work with Alexis
25 Shebil from the Department of Justice.

1 She along with that administration is talking
2 with us about the strong city initiative where
3 \$84 million dollars will becoming down to the City of
4 Detroit and we're talking to different organizations
5 and field groups, nonprofits alike to talk about where
6 this \$84 million dollars will be going into the City of
7 Detroit.

8 This is the sixth city initiative that Barack
9 Obama's administration has talking to us. We will be
10 going back November 8th to talk more in details about
11 where this money is going to be used here in the City
12 of Detroit.

13 I know one of the conversations we had was to
14 bring, was to talk about the money not going into the
15 general purpose fund or the Mayor's Office. So I will
16 be there November 8th to talk about how we're going to
17 move this \$84 million dollars here in the City of
18 Detroit, and I'll bring you more in that detail with a
19 stronger presentation next time about where the money
20 will be going and things of that nature. I'll have
21 that information for you.

22 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you. Any
23 questions?

24 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Thank you.

25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: The meeting on the 8th

1 where is that going be?

2 MR. TERRY: Washington D.C.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: You'll come back with the
4 information? Great. Thank you, sir. Are there others
5 who wish to address the Board of Police Commissioners?
6 Are there others who wish to address the Board of
7 Police Commissioners? Come to the podium right here in
8 the middle, ma'am.

9 SPEAKER: I live at --

10 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm sorry, you name?

11 MS. DARRAH: Cindy Darrah.

12 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Please don't give us your
13 address for the record.

14 MS. CINDY: Okay. Well, I just said I don't
15 live directly under the viaduct. It's Second and the
16 Lodge. But I'm interest on my corner it seems like
17 fewer and fewer people out there. I didn't know if
18 you'd taken them to jail or not. But people do come by
19 and I think seven of your Officers arrested one young
20 man the other day and he claims he was beat up after
21 they took him away in a car, but he was out the next
22 day. I don't know.

23 But why I came here is I'd like to know if
24 it's possible somehow that we could go through the
25 people that haven't been officially sentenced that are

1 incarcerated and register them to vote and allow them
2 to vote like they're supposed to be able do.

3 If they're only incarcerated and they haven't
4 been sentenced they legally could vote. But I ask the
5 election commission yesterday. This ballot is really
6 unbelievable. If they don't have ambassadors like they
7 had under Jackie Curry so there's nobody to go out.
8 And I don't know if there are young people that I think
9 are registering people whether somebody could allow
10 them to go in.

11 And then I thought since you've got
12 fingerprints, you do, and I think you have positive ID
13 of everybody you got in jail so ID problems shouldn't
14 be a problem where they could actually register and be
15 able to get -- but we need an official thing so it
16 would be just like they went into the Secretary of
17 State or they went into the election commission and
18 showed their ID there. If we could get them to do
19 something like that and at least get absentee ballot
20 request forms where they can request absentee ballots.

21 I don't know if they should be mailed to the,
22 I guess, mailed to the jail in case they're still in
23 there during the election time. They could actually
24 right now they could file it and mail it right back in
25 and have it counted if they're eligible to vote.

1 But I don't have that much time. I've got to
2 go to Kansas. But I was hoping maybe you could help do
3 this because we do want -- like I told the police the
4 other night when they were taking this young kid, I
5 wanted to know about it. I was asking them.

6 They didn't know the policy. But I said
7 every vote counts. We hope it does anyway, so. The
8 ballot's kind of interesting. It's something that we
9 have to be able to talk about. When I was in jail
10 years ago they wouldn't even allow newspapers. This is
11 Oakland County. No newspapers, no radio, no TV. You
12 could have a magazine, but no books, no books.

13 So anyway it might be good to get some of
14 these sample ballots and circulate so they could have a
15 discussion. Maybe they could figure out more of this
16 stuff than I can when I read the ballot.

17 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm sorry, ma'am, your
18 name for the record, again?

19 MS. DARRAH: Cindy, C-I-N-D-Y, Darrah,
20 D-A-R-R-A-H.

21 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you.

22 MS. DARRAH: I have noticed it's looking more
23 like a ghost town over by where I am. I hope this
24 isn't the way they're going to objectify by putting
25 people in jail.

1 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: And your location?

2 MS. DARRAH: Petersburg and Second,
3 , between Cass and Second. But we don't have
4 any violence. When I hear all these different violent
5 things. That's why I think we really need to push to
6 have marijuana legalized. It's not a gateway drug. It
7 might actually be a drug that would keep people out of
8 these things like crack that makes people mean, you
9 know, so.

10 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: I'm going to have
11 Commissioner White respond to your question and then
12 we'll certainly looked into it, as well.

13 MS. DARRAH: Okay. Because we only have
14 until October 9th, you know, that's the last day to
15 register people. Also this thing about the absentee
16 ballot that you can get forms, you know, and they can
17 -- they don't have the money to mail them in but maybe
18 somebody could be -- see, Reverend Pinckney went to
19 jail.

20 You have to be careful how you handle
21 absentee ballots. They almost have to be mailed back
22 in. And since they don't have ambassadors unless they
23 are a relative but maybe by being an official of the
24 Police Department you're allowed to bring, I mean, you
25 handle poll books. I would think you could handle some

1 absentee ballots. You might, you know, check with, I
2 don't know who, but maybe the state, too, as well.
3 Okay. Thank you.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am. Are
5 there others who wish to address the Board of Police
6 Commissioners? Are there others who wish to address
7 the Board of Police Commissioners? All right. Hearing
8 and seeing none we will close that section of our
9 meeting at this time. We will move back toward the
10 beginning of the agenda.

11 For the record, Commissioner Jessica Taylor,
12 Vice Chair of the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
13 has arrived and, therefore, we do have a quorum.

14 At this time I will entertain a motion to
15 approve the agenda from today's meeting Thursday,
16 September 27th.

17 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So moved.

18 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
20 and supported without an objection. All those in
21 favor?

22 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

23 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: We also will entertain a
24 motion to approve the minutes from Thursday,
25 September 13th, 2012.

1 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: So move.

2 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
4 and supported. No objection. All those in favor?

5 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed? Then
7 finally I'll entertain a motion to approve the minutes
8 from Thursday, September 20th, 2012.

9 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: So move.

10 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support.

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
12 and supported. All those in favor?

13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Let's go to a matter that
15 has come up before and unfortunately I don't know if
16 the Commissioners have the actual letter in front of
17 them as relates to some promotional matters. I know we
18 have discussed it informally, but we want to do some
19 formal voting.

20 Mr. Secretary, would it be okay, what is your
21 pleasure as far as being able to move forward? I have
22 it on my iPad. I can read the letter if that will
23 help.

24 SECRETARY ANTHONY: For the record, George
25 Anthony, Secretary to the Board. I think if you can

1 just read some highlights or so that would suffice as a
2 resolution to make the promotions, sir, if you have
3 those available to you.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Board, what is your
5 pleasure? Is that okay with you?

6 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Yes.

7 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Yes.

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All right. Okay. We
9 want to -- I'm not going to have them stand up right
10 now because they might be standing for awhile, but we
11 want to deal with the promotions of Senior Investigator
12 Lawrence Akbar from Interim Supervisor to Senior
13 Supervisor, I'm sorry, to Supervisor.

14 And then we also we want to highlight the
15 accomplishments of Investigator Charlotte Jones and
16 promote her to Senior Investigator, as well. Let's
17 give both of them a hand.

18 (Applause.)

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Mr. Lawrence Akbar has
20 continuously served as Acting Supervisor Investigator
21 since December of 2010. Mr. Akbar supervised OCI
22 Backlog Squad whose sole purpose was to investigate and
23 resolve several hundred citizens complaints that had
24 lapsed into backlog status over years.

25 The Backlog Squad was the product of an

1 agreement between the Detroit Police Department and the
2 Department of Justice to meet the terms of the consent
3 decree. With the exception of Mr. Akbar, the Backlog
4 Squad consisted entirely of sworn supervisors on loan
5 to OCI from the DPD in February of 2012, one of the OCI
6 supervising investigators went onto extended leave
7 under the Family Medical Leave Act.

8 The supervisor's caseload and investigator
9 were redistributed amongst the three supervisors
10 including Acting Supervisor Akbar who was still
11 supervising the Special Assignment Team formally known
12 as the Backlog Squad. Although the redistribution
13 strained the span of the control and supervision the
14 work at OCI has progressed towards compliance with the
15 consent decree.

16 It should be noted that the supervisor on
17 Family Leave Act recently applied for retirement which
18 will become effective at the end of September. Hence,
19 a vacancy will be created at the Supervisory
20 Investigator level.

21 Mr. Akbar meets the approved and published
22 criteria for Supervisor Investigator. In light of the
23 soon to be created retirement and pressing need to
24 maximize disruption at OCI, as a Board we endorse
25 Attorney Washington's recommendation for a status

1 change for Mr. Akbar from Senior Investigator to
2 Supervising Investigator at OCI.

3 Board, what is your pleasure?

4 COMMISSIONER WHITE: I move for adoption.

5 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
7 and seconded that Interim Supervising Investigator
8 Akbar, did I say that right, will be moved to permanent
9 Supervisor at OCI. Any discussion?

10 I want to say this, Mr. Akbar actually helped
11 us tremendously over at OCI. Not only has he been
12 called onto help us with the backlog status to reduce
13 the backlog once, I think he did it about three or four
14 times we called on him to do it and every time he
15 stepped up to the plate and he's hit the ball out of
16 the park literally.

17 And so if there's anyone who is deserving of
18 this acolyte it's him. He has been a trooper. He had
19 literally weathered every storm that's been there at
20 OCI and has always been above the fray. And as we move
21 forward it's that type of professionalism, it's that
22 type of attitude and foresight that is transferring
23 over to new Investigators as we bring them into
24 literally don't look at what's happening right now but
25 literally look to the ball and the goal that's ahead.

1 We just thank you from the bottom of our
2 hearts for the outstanding job you've done. Could you
3 just stand, sir, and let everybody know who you are?
4 Amen.

5 (Applause.)

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those in favor of the
7 recommendation, please say aye?

8 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

9 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
10 Motion carries. Thank you, sir.

11 Ms. Charlotte Jones. In like manner,
12 Ms. Jones excels as an Investigator and is routinely
13 assigned complex investigations that are generally
14 reserved for Senior Investigators.

15 On the whole, Ms. Jones investigations are
16 timely, thorough and complete. She also finds time to
17 assist other Investigators with their case
18 preparations. She has demonstrated competency in
19 performing the work and her experience is unmatched.
20 Despite the title, Ms. Jones' functions as a Senior
21 Investigator.

22 The proposed change in Mr. Akbar's title
23 created a vacancy at the Senior Investigator level.
24 Ms. Jones meets the approved and proposed published
25 criteria for Senior Investigator and has the knowledge,

1 skill, and ability to perform the work.

2 In our opinion as a Board, Ms. Jones would be
3 the ideal choice to fill the position. We, therefore,
4 endorse Attorney Washington's recommendation for a
5 status change for Ms. Jones from Investigator to Senior
6 Investigator at OCI.

7 Ms. Jones, would you stand. You may give her
8 a hand. Amen. What is your pleasure, Board?

9 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Move to support.

10 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Support.

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly
12 supported that we move to adopt this change as well.
13 And certainly, Investigator Jones, we really appreciate
14 your thoroughness and your writings. We appreciate the
15 fact that you are there to really handle those tough
16 cases.

17 What the public may not know is we get some
18 very difficult cases that involves a number of Officers
19 which takes quite a considerable amount of time, skill,
20 and talent to investigate those cases. And without
21 question, Investigator Jones has been consistent in
22 performing to the highest level of standard as relates
23 to respecting the citizens right, but also the
24 understanding of police operations to understand where
25 the police may or may not have crossed the line.

1 And so we thank her for an outstanding job.
2 We congratulate her on this new endeavor. All those in
3 favor?

4 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

5 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
6 Motion carries. Congratulations to both of you again.

7 (Applause.)

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Do we want to do the OCI?
9 Let's go to the OCI report at this time, the monthly
10 report. Thank you.

11 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
12 Pamela Davis Drake, the Chief Investigator for OCI for
13 the record. Mr. Chair, if you will indulge me I'd like
14 to introduce other members of that staff that are also
15 here. Okay. We have Investigator Rosalyn Banks,
16 Investigator Carolyn Nichols, Investigator Ken
17 Paraskevin and Investigator Lisonya Sloan. Thank you,
18 sir.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you.

20 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: All right. Our current
21 statistics as of today we have a total of 199 open
22 cases, 27 cases were submitted for closing in this past
23 week actually, and for the past three weeks zero cases
24 are 90 days over. I think that's quite an
25 accomplishment.

1 (Applause.)

2 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: We continue to hold our
3 weekly accountability meeting with the individual teams
4 on Thursday mornings in addition to the weekly
5 Supervisor's Meetings on Thursday mornings. Because of
6 the backlog now being eliminated we can concentrate
7 more heavily on the quality of the reports as opposed
8 to quantity.

9 To that end, we're holding a training on
10 Wednesday, October 10th for all Supervisors and
11 Investigators on case management and to address any
12 issues that are posed by the Federal Monitors.

13 We're gearing up to conduct our staff
14 evaluations and hope to have them completed by mid
15 October, October 15th, actually is our target date. In
16 addition to the evaluations of the Investigator
17 Supervisors I will also ask the Board evaluate the
18 performance of the Chief Investigator during the past
19 couple months.

20 The reduction of the deadline for the reports
21 to be submitted from 90 days to 80 days is working.
22 What we're doing now is taking a concentrated effort
23 and I notice that staff is doing that and they're doing
24 a tremendous job in trying to reach that 80 day mark as
25 opposed to 90 days so that we have more time to

1 evaluate or review those reports as they're submitted
2 for any necessary corrections.

3 As to your question, Mr. Chair, about force
4 and who actually initially handles those
5 investigations? From my understanding there's been a
6 lot of discussion surrounding that issue. There is no
7 clear line on that issue. I don't know,
8 Ms. Washington, if you would like to add anything to
9 that?

10 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Celia Washington. Just
11 very briefly, the consent decree line, if there is one
12 is criminality. If those matters that involve
13 criminality go to IA. Those matters that involve some
14 use of force with demeanor issues come to OCI.

15 We are in something which is a little bit
16 different. We're in constant communication with
17 Internal Affairs to make sure that those cases are
18 properly assigned.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Here's my reason for
20 asking that question, I'm reading cases as I'm
21 reviewing them of citizens who have been obviously
22 injured either at the hands of Officers or in the
23 holding cell, and at what point is that an Internal
24 Affairs case and why are we investigating something
25 that just as the case I'm reading it seems like it

1 should be something that, you know, I guess you have to
2 deal with the definition of criminally and what is
3 that?

4 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: And that is a
5 definition that we're working and have worked with IA
6 and with the Monitor to more clearly identify. There's
7 some other variables and other factors and we had some
8 conversations on use of force, reports when those are
9 completed, when those are not completed. And there's
10 some instances that those trigger command responses and
11 some trigger others. But we'll be happy to talk to you
12 about those.

13 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: If we can get that in
14 writing that would be helpful to all of us as we review
15 some of these cases because some of the claims along
16 with the proof that's in the case to me seems like it
17 probably should be out of our shop and in IA shop.

18 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: I strongly agree and
19 I've made that argument a lot. So we can certainly
20 talk more about it.

21 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: That would be great.
22 Thank you.

23 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: That concludes my report,
24 Mr. Chair.

25 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Any questions for the

1 Chief Investigator?

2 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: None.

3 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Outstanding job. I think
4 it's well noted for the record that this is the second
5 straight report that we received there's zero cases
6 over 90 days. That's just outstanding, you know, in a
7 city where it seems like a lot of government entities
8 are not working.

9 I think clearly the Detroit Police Department
10 and the Office of Chief Investigators have shown
11 through this consent decree that we are moving to
12 benchmarks that I think are setting pace for the entire
13 county as relates to citizen oversight and the Police
14 Department policy. So thank you so very much you and
15 Ms. Washington and the Investigators that are here as
16 well.

17 MS. DAVIS DRAKE: Here, here. Thank you.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you. There are a
19 couple of items that are in front of us. One is a
20 suspension without pay that is not contested.
21 Mr. Washington, could you come to the podium and help
22 us with this one, please, ma'am. Or there's a letter
23 we received regarding suspension without pay for
24 Officer Ryan Carruthers. Could you talk to us about
25 this?

1 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Again, Celia
2 Washington. I'll just give you the preliminary because
3 I believe Secretary Anthony has the Chief's letter.
4 But just as a matter of course for those who don't know
5 in certain cases where there's suspension without pay
6 requests a recommendations made by the Chief that
7 involve felonies. It's not all. It's not across the
8 board. But in many instances DPOA Counsel will
9 contest, so that's why you don't have this one in
10 closed session. So Secretary Anthony will read it into
11 record and the Board will vote accordingly.

12 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Secretary Anthony.

13 SECRETARY ANTHONY: For the record George
14 Anthony, Secretary to the Board. In a letter dated
15 September 27th, 2012 addressed to the Board of Police
16 Officers, subject: Suspension without pay of Police
17 Officer Ryan Carruthers, C-A-R-R-U-T-H-E-R-S,
18 Badge 617, assigned to 8th precinct.

19 On January 5th, 2012 Internal Affairs had
20 been notified that off duty Police Officer Ryan
21 Carruthers, Badge 617 of the 8th Precinct was arrested
22 for possession within intent to deliver marijuana.
23 Internal Affairs responded to the Oakland County Jail
24 to pick up Officer Carruthers and transport him for a
25 Just Cause Drug Screening at the Midwest Facility.

1 Internal Affairs arrived at the Oakland
2 County Jail to retrieve Officer Carruthers, where a
3 deputy informed them that the Narcotic Enforcement
4 Team, a multi-jurisdiction task force raided an address
5 in Southfield, Michigan and arrested Officer Carruthers
6 for Possession With Intent to Deliver Marijuana.

7 The deputy further revealed that the business
8 owned and operated by Officer Carruthers as an illegal
9 medicinal marijuana facility. The deputy further
10 advised that Officer Carruthers was being released from
11 custody and the criminal matter would be handled as a
12 not in custody warrant.

13 Upon completion of the Just Cause Drug
14 Screen, Officer Carruthers was suspended from the
15 Detroit Police Department. On January 26, 2012 the
16 Board of Police Commissioners contravened the request
17 to suspend Officer Carruthers without pay.

18 On August 22, 2011 the Oakland County
19 Prosecutor's Office charged Officer Carruthers with one
20 count of Money Laundering - Third Degree, one count of
21 Conspiracy to Commit Controlled Substance -
22 Deliver/Manufacture Marijuana, and one count of
23 Controlled Substance - Delivery/Manufacture marijuana.

24 On the same date, the Honorable Magistrate
25 Cynthia M. Arvant, A-R-V-A-N-T, of the 46th District

1 Court signed Felony Warrant Number 12-95833 for the
2 recommended charges.

3 On August 23, 2012 Officer Carruthers was
4 arrested and arraigned before the Honorable Judge Susan
5 M. Moiseev, M-O-I-S-E-E-V of the 46th District for the
6 recommended charges. He was released on a \$10,000.00
7 personal bond. Officer Carruthers' preliminary
8 examination date was scheduled for September 24, 2012.

9 Based upon the above facts and circumstances
10 it is recommended that Officer Carruthers be charged
11 with but not limited to the following violations of the
12 Department's Rules and Regulations:

13 Charge: Conduct unbecoming and an Officer,
14 contrary to the Law Enforcement Code of Ethics; this
15 being in violation of the 2010 Detroit Police
16 Department Manual Series 100, Directive 102.3 - 7.9,
17 Conduct Unprofessional, Command 1.

18 Due to the egregious nature of the conduct
19 and the newly issued criminal charges, Police Chief
20 Ralph Godbee is requesting your concurrence with the
21 suspension of Officer Carruthers without pay effective
22 September 27th, 2012. Signed by Police Chief Ralph L.
23 Godbee, Junior. That completed the reading, sir.

24 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Before us is a request
25 for suspension without pay for Police Officer Ryan

1 Carruthers, Badge 617 assigned to the 8th Precinct.
2 Without contravention the suspension without pay will
3 stand. Is there any contravention? There is no
4 contravention. So the suspension without pay will
5 stand. Thank you.

6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you.

7 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: At this time I would like
8 to ask Attorney Washington to come again to the podium
9 as relates to the disciplinary appeal of Police Officer
10 Shonee McNair. I have a question first because I want
11 to make sure that we are on solid legal footing before
12 we go through this. It is our understanding that this
13 petition has been filed past the date that has been
14 worked out in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

15 And so can this Board hear this, I guess this
16 is my question?

17 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Mr. Chair, and I've had
18 conversation with Counsel on this and I think we're all
19 clear. This is a little bit different. It was tardy
20 not due to the fault of counsel. What you will hear
21 because there has been a requested for oral argument
22 and we do have to move forward with that request what
23 you will hear is discussion as to the timeliness, the
24 lack or justification of the piece with more than the
25 substance of the appeal.

1 I think, actually Counsel Stolberg, and I
2 talked about it this morning, I don't think anybody's
3 questioning whether it was tardy. The contract's very
4 clear that the Officer reached out to counsel outside
5 of the time. But the appeal was filed and our oral
6 argument was requested.

7 So I would almost unless counsel disagrees if
8 it's the Board's pleasure to forego the oral argument,
9 I don't think counsel will have an objection. But I'll
10 certainly --

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: To forgo the oral
12 argument and hear the reason why it was not turned in
13 on time?

14 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Personally I would
15 suggest that we move forward with the oral argument so
16 that you can hear both sides, the petitioner and the
17 City.

18 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Will we be going against
19 the Collective Bargaining Agreement?

20 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Absolutely not because
21 the decision is the decision because it was outside.
22 It's more of a courtesy maybe would be a better way to
23 look at it.

24 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Okay. That's helps out
25 greatly.

1 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: We're here today, today
2 is the time and place set for the Trial Board appeal of
3 Police Officer Shonee McNair. Officer Shonee McNair
4 was charged on July 12, 2011 with the following rule
5 violations, Count 1 failure to exhibit a polite,
6 dignified and courteous manner toward any person
7 including detainees and fellow members.

8 Spec 1, that she, Police Officer Shonee
9 McNair, Badge 1429, currently assigned to the Eastern
10 District while on duty and uniform attire did on
11 November 26, 2010, at approximately twelve p.m., at
12 Balfour and Cornwall failed to exhibit a polite,
13 dignified and courteous manner toward a citizen,
14 Mr. Stanley Williams, Jr., by speaking to him in a
15 demeaning manner and being hostile and cold towards him
16 while investigating a hit and run accident. This being
17 in violation of the Detroit Police Department Manual
18 Series 100 Directive 102.3 - 7.9, Conduct
19 Unprofessional Command 4.

20 As a bit of background, Mr. Chair, the Trial
21 Board did convene pursuant to Sections 71107 of the
22 Charter. The Department was represented by
23 Letitia Jones who is present today, Officer McNair was
24 represented by Attorney Stolberg who is also here
25 today. Attorney Stolberg at that time entered a plea

1 of not guilty.

2 The trial board did come back and found
3 Officer McNair guilty as to the one charge and
4 recommended a penalty of one day suspension without pay
5 and benefits as well as mandatory attendance in a
6 verbal judo class and customer service. Counsel?

7 ATTORNEY STOLBERG: Good afternoon. For the
8 record, Donald Howard Stolberg on behalf of the Detroit
9 Police Officers Association and Police Officer Shonee
10 McNair. Your attorney is correct. This was a late
11 filing. The record indicates from what has been
12 provided to me that Officer McNair signed for that
13 trial board decision on about January 16th.

14 Unfortunately our office was not contacted.
15 So near as I could tell from phone records until
16 March 12th, 2012 within eleven days which obviously
17 would have been within the twenty days we did file a
18 petition on Officer McNair's behalf. But clearly it
19 was beyond the twenty day period as provided by the
20 contract.

21 In order to explain if you will why I am here
22 I did send a letter to Officer McNair and tried to
23 contact her by telephone on several occasions prior to
24 today's hearing to determine what, if any, reasonable
25 explanation she may have had for her delay in

1 requesting that an appeal petition be filed.

2 Unfortunately I have not heard from her, so I
3 cannot offer an explanation on behalf of Officer McNair
4 as to why there was a delay which is not to say that
5 she may have had a good explanation. I just don't know
6 and I can't say that, so.

7 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: For the record, Attorney,
8 is Officer McNair here today?

9 ATTORNEY STOLBERG: Not to my knowledge. I
10 do not see her present.

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Okay. Thank you, sir.
12 Attorney Jones.

13 ATTORNEY JONES: Letitia Jones, for the
14 record. I just want to read into the record the
15 Collective Bargaining Agreement Provision and that is
16 Provision Number 9 of the Collective Bargaining
17 Agreement that was in place at the time. I'm sorry,
18 bullet point E4 Appeals to the Board of Police
19 Commissioners or to Arbitration must be made within
20 twenty calendar days or receipt of the Chief's hearing
21 judgement. And that is just to lend you support as to
22 dismissal of appeal. Thank you.

23 ATTORNEY WASHINGTON: Again, Celia
24 Washington. Inasmuch, and again, this recommendation
25 has been provided to the Board, as much as Officer

1 McNair received the Trial Board's decision as Counsel
2 said on January 16th, a timely appeal should have been
3 filed with the Board on or before February 5th, 2012.
4 The appeal, however, was not filed until on or after
5 March 23rd, 2012. Therefore, based on a plain meaning
6 interpretation of the Collective Bargaining Agreement
7 the Department is correct in its contention that this
8 matter should be dismissed on the grounds it is no
9 longer a viable claim.

10 Officer McNair's petition offered no
11 justification for the tardiness of the appeal and based
12 on that it's recommended that the Trial Board's
13 findings be upheld in their entirety.

14 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, Counsel.
15 Board, you've heard the recommendation of Counsel in
16 regards the Police Officer Shonee McNair. What is your
17 pleasure?

18 COMMISSIONER WHITE: I move that this Body
19 uphold the Trial Board's findings and that Police
20 Officer Shonee McNair, Badge 1429, appeal in regards to
21 this matter be denied.

22 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.

23 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
24 and supported. Is there anymore discussion? Anymore
25 discussion? Hear and seeing none, all those in favor?

1 COMMISSIONER: Aye.

2 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
3 Motion carries. Thank you, ma'am. Thank you, sir. I
4 just want to say for the record in regards and I don't
5 know if we said this in the reading in the change of
6 status for Lawrence Akbar and Charlotte Jones that
7 their status changes are effectively immediately, for
8 the record.

9 At this time we have a grant from the
10 Department that they would like for us to approve. I
11 will ask Commission White if he would read that grant
12 for us. Thank you, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER WHITE: Commissioners, before us
14 is grant for the Proposed Initiative for the Michigan
15 Department of Transportation MDOT to provide funds to
16 pay for work zone traffic enforcement for the M-85 Fort
17 Street Bascule Bridge Replacement over the Rouge River.

18 On September 4th, 2012 the State of Michigan
19 Department of Transportation indicated in the attached
20 letter they had funds available to pay overtime costs
21 up to \$160,000.00 with no cash match for the Detroit
22 Police Department Officers to provided traffic
23 enforcement in the vicinity of M-85 Fort Street during
24 the Bascule Bridge Replacement. The existing bridge is
25 in poor condition and it is currently restricted to one

1 lane in each direction. It is anticipated that the
2 bridge crossing will be closed to traffic for 18 months
3 to two years.

4 MDOT has deemed this project to be critical
5 to the economic and social viability of the residents
6 businesses in the area. In order to mitigate for
7 increased emergency response times during the closure
8 of the bridge MDOT seeks to have two DPD Officers work
9 a four-hour shift, 7 days a week, for or approximately
10 80 weeks. These patrols will be on overtime and would
11 not exceed the budgeted allowance. The exact start
12 date of the enforcement will be communicated to DPD
13 once the MDOT Contractor provides a scheduled date for
14 the closure of the bridge; however the approximate
15 start date is May 1, 2013.

16 In order to reimburse the City for their
17 expenses, MDOT would require a summary spreadsheet
18 detailing the Officers that worked the assignment,
19 their overtime rate, dates worked, enforcement
20 location, total patrol hours, total traffic stops,
21 total speed citations, total restraint citations, total
22 verbal warnings, total arrests, and total
23 careless/reckless driving citations. Reimbursement
24 will be made to the Detroit Police Department based
25 upon the existing overtime rate for police officers. A

1 DPD Sergeant will oversee the project and
2 administrative costs are factored into the funding.
3 And invoice shall be sent to MDOT for review and
4 payment on a monthly basis. Commander John Serda, of
5 the 4th Precinct, would serve as the project director
6 for the initiative.

7 Approval of this proposal will be a benefit
8 to the City of Detroit in that it will allow for a
9 visible increase in patrol presence in the area without
10 impacting the city's budget. This increase in presence
11 and visibility can be expected to impact not only
12 traffic violations, but criminal activity as well. In
13 addition, the safety of workers and residents in the
14 construction area and the nearby vicinity will be
15 enhanced by targeted traffic enforcement. Finally, by
16 providing a closer working relationship between MDOT
17 and the Detroit Police Department, likelihood of the
18 establishment of similar cooperative efforts will be
19 increased.

20 Mr. Chair, I move for adoption.

21 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

22 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It's been properly moved
23 and supported. Any questions regarding this grant? I
24 just have a few. Who's going to -- I guess what's
25 going to be the protocol for the Officers receiving

1 this assignment especially considering that it involves
2 overtime pay?

3 COMMANDER SERDA: Good afternoon, Commander
4 Serda from Southwest District. The protocol is our
5 general prescheduled overtime roster so that the
6 Officers will be offered the overtime when they are
7 eligible on the prescheduled overtime roster.

8 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: The other thing that
9 jumps out to me about this particular grant request is
10 that it asks for traffic stop and speeding citations.
11 Is there some type of quota being set or does someone
12 have in mind or?

13 COMMANDER SERDA: No, no, I had discussions
14 with MDOT for a long time regarding this grant.
15 They're not looking for any kind of quotas. They want
16 to know for their money what they're getting and what
17 our Officers are doing out there when they're working
18 on the grant.

19 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: So no speed traps,
20 nothing like that?

21 COMMANDER SERDA: Nothing like that, no.

22 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Great. Any other
23 questions? All those in favor of approving the grant
24 request?

25 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

1 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: All those opposed?
2 Motion carries. Thank you, Commander Serda.

3 COMMANDER SERDA: My pleasure.

4 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Thank you, we appreciate
5 it. That concludes all of our New Business. Our next
6 Board meeting will be Thursday, October 4th, 2012,
7 3:00 p.m., at 1300 Beaubien, Room 328A. We look
8 forward to seeing all of you there. At this time I'll
9 entertain a motion to -- yes. Deputy Chief Tolbert.

10 D.C. TOLBERT: Sir.

11 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Could you come to the
12 podium? You know sometimes and it's a shame we have to
13 do this in a public meeting -- I'm just teasing.

14 (Laughter.)

15 On behalf of the Board we want to thank you
16 for your participate in our forum that we had a few
17 weeks ago when we brought the various agencies together
18 to talk about interagency work and the agreements. We
19 thought that the information that was gleaned at that
20 meeting was very helpful and very beneficial.

21 Certainly we learned some more information.
22 We just want to thank you for stepping in. We just
23 want to give you this certificate.

24 D.C. TOLBERT: Thank you, sir.

25 (Applause.)

1 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Any comments? Thank you,
2 thank you. Thank you, Mr. Secretary. At this time
3 I'll entertain a motion to adjourn the meeting.

4 COMMISSIONER WHITE: So move.

5 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

6 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: It been properly moved.
7 All those in favor?

8 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

9 CHAIRMAN WARFIELD: Meeting adjourned. Thank
10 you, ladies and gentleman. We'll see you next week.

11 (The meeting concluded at 4:06 p.m.)
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF WAYNE)

I, Elizabeth Koller, hereby certify that I reported stenographically the foregoing proceedings at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to computer transcription under my supervision; and that this is a full, true, complete and correct transcription of said proceedings.



Elizabeth Koller

Elizabeth Koller, CSR 7042,
Notary Public,
Wayne County, Michigan

My Commission expires: June 1, 2018

A
abide 17:15
ability 29:1
able 12:10 14:9
 20:2,15 21:9
 24:21
absentee 20:19
 20:20 22:15,21
 23:1
absolutely 17:17
 39:20
abuse 8:2 11:25
 12:24
accident 40:16
accomplishment
 30:25
accomplishments
 25:15
accountability
 31:3
acid 12:8
acolyte 27:18
Act 26:7,17
Acting 25:20
 26:10
activity 11:25
 46:12
actual 24:16
add 32:8
addition 10:23
 15:19 31:4,16
 46:13
address 17:13
 19:5,6,13 23:5
 23:6 31:11
 36:4
addressed 35:15
adjourn 49:3
adjourned 49:9
adjusting 5:2
administration
 17:24 18:1,9
administrative
 46:2
admission 5:1
adopt 29:12
adoption 27:4
 46:20
advised 36:10
Affairs 32:17,24
 35:19,23 36:1

afternoon 3:4
 7:13 17:18
 41:7 47:3
age 10:22 11:15
 11:16,17,20
agencies 48:17
agenda 17:3
 23:10,15
ago 21:10 48:17
agree 33:18
agreement 26:1
 38:14 39:19
 42:15,17 43:6
agreements 48:18
ahead 27:25
Akbar 25:12,19
 25:21 26:3,10
 26:21 27:1,8
 27:10 44:6
Akbar's 28:22
Alan 3:20
Alexis 17:24
alike 18:5
allegations 6:8
 7:2,21 8:12
alleged 6:3
allow 20:1,9
 21:10 46:8
allowance 45:11
allowed 22:24
ambassadors 20:6
 22:22
Amen 4:16,17
 28:4 29:8
amount 29:19
annual 14:23,24
answering 5:12
Anthony 2:17
 3:12,14,15
 5:16 6:17 7:6
 24:24,25 35:3
 35:10,12,13,14
 38:6
anticipated 45:1
anybody's 39:2
anymore 43:24,24
anyway 21:7,13
appeal 38:9,25
 39:5 40:2 42:1
 42:22 43:2,4
 43:11,20
Appeals 42:18

APPEARANCES 2:1
Appearing 2:8
Applause 25:18
 28:5 30:7 31:1
 48:25
applied 26:17
apply 11:8
appointment
 13:21
appreciate 3:24
 4:19 14:6
 16:11 29:13,14
 48:4
Approval 46:7
approve 23:15,24
 24:7 44:10
approved 26:21
 28:24
approving 47:23
approximate
 45:14
approximately
 40:11 45:9
Arbitration
 42:19
area 8:22,23
 15:10 45:6
 46:9,14
areas 6:8
argument 33:19
 38:21 39:6,8
 39:12,15
arraigned 37:4
array 9:25
arrested 19:19
 35:21 36:5
 37:4
arrests 45:22
arrived 23:13
 36:1
articulate 14:9
Arvant 36:25
asked 13:25
asking 21:5
 32:20
asks 47:10
assault 7:22 8:6
 8:8,12 9:9,18
 10:14,17 12:7
 12:16 13:5,12
assaults 14:15
 14:15,22 15:1

assigned 28:13
 32:18 35:18
 38:1 40:9
assignment 26:11
 45:18 47:1
assist 8:2 28:17
assistance 12:21
 12:25
assistants 7:24
assists 7:25
Association 41:9
attached 44:19
attempted 11:25
attendance 41:5
attention 8:21
 16:21
attire 40:10
attitude 27:22
attorney 2:3
 3:19 26:25
 29:4 32:10
 33:4,18 35:1
 38:8,17 39:14
 39:20 40:1,24
 40:25 41:7,10
 42:7,9,12,13
 42:23
AUDIENCE 4:17
August 5:18,19
 5:24 6:2,4,7
 36:18 37:3
authority 11:4
available 25:3
 44:20
awhile 25:10
aye 23:22 24:5
 24:13 28:7,8
 30:4 44:1
 47:25 49:8
A-R-V-A-N-T
 36:25

B
back 4:20 9:2
 17:10 18:10
 19:3 20:24
 22:21 23:9
 41:2
background 40:20
backlog 25:22,24
 25:25 26:3,12
 27:12,13 31:6

Badge 35:18, 21 38:1 40:9 43:20	24:25 25:4 26:24 27:3 29:2, 8 31:17 35:8, 11, 14, 15 36:16 38:15 40:2, 21 41:2 41:13 42:18, 25 43:3, 15 48:6 48:15	Carolyn 30:16 carries 28:10 30:6 44:3 48:2 Carruthers 34:24 35:17, 21, 24 36:2, 5, 8, 10, 14 36:17, 19 37:3 37:7, 10, 21 38:1 case 8:13 9:6 10:8 20:22 28:17 31:11 32:24, 25 33:16 caseload 6:16 14:10 26:8 cases 5:25 6:1, 2 6:7, 25 13:19 14:13 29:16, 18 29:20 30:22, 22 30:23 32:17, 20 33:15 34:5 35:5 cash 44:21 Cass 22:3 Cause 35:25 36:13 Celia 2:2 3:18 32:10 35:1 42:23 cell 32:23 Central 1:17 CEO 17:19 certain 35:5 certainly 3:24 4:21 5:10 15:4 16:11 22:12 29:13 33:19 39:10 48:21 certificate 48:23 50:1 certify 50:8 chain 8:17 Chair 3:14 6:17 23:12 30:11, 13 32:3 33:24 38:17 40:20 46:20 Chairman 2:12 3:4, 7, 23 4:18 6:12, 15, 20 7:7 7:18 14:5 15:3 15:12, 16, 19	16:4, 7, 10, 13 16:17 17:9 18:22, 25 19:3 19:10, 12 21:17 21:21 22:1, 10 23:4, 19, 23 24:3, 6, 11, 14 25:4, 8, 19 27:6 28:6, 9 29:11 30:5, 8, 19 32:19 33:13, 21 33:25 34:3, 18 35:12 37:24 38:7 39:11, 18 39:24 42:7, 11 43:14, 23 44:2 46:22 47:8, 19 47:22 48:1, 4 48:11 49:1, 6, 9 Chairman's 4:19 CHAIRPERSON 2:14 change 27:1 28:22 29:5, 12 44:5 changed 11:22 changes 44:7 Chaplain 4:6 charge 9:6, 11 37:13 41:3 charged 10:10, 10 36:19 37:10 40:4 charges 37:2, 6 37:19 Charlotte 25:15 28:11 44:6 Charter 40:22 check 23:1 Chief 2:18 3:9 3:16 5:25 6:18 6:21 7:8 16:13 16:21 30:12 31:18 34:1, 10 35:6 37:19, 22 48:9 Chief's 3:9 16:15 35:3 42:20 child 8:2 12:24 13:21, 25 14:1 children 11:25 choice 29:3
Balfour 40:12 ball 27:15, 25 ballot 20:5, 19 21:16 22:16 ballots 20:20 21:14 22:21 23:1 ballot's 21:8 Banks 2:2 3:18 Barack 18:8 Bargaining 38:14 39:19 42:15, 16 43:6 Bascule 44:17, 24 baseball 4:23 based 37:9 43:5 43:11 45:24 basis 46:4 Bates 30:15 beat 19:20 Beaubien 2:5 48:7 becoming 18:3 beginning 23:10 behalf 2:8 41:8 41:18 42:3 48:15 believe 14:17 35:3 benchmarks 34:12 beneficial 48:20 benefit 46:7 benefits 41:5 Benjamin 2:18 3:10 7:8 better 39:22 beyond 41:19 biological 10:15 birthday 12:2, 6 bit 4:25 32:15 38:19 40:20 bless 4:9, 9 blessing 4:13 blessings 4:14 board 1:2 2:3, 4 2:8 3:5, 7, 11 3:15, 19 4:14 17:13 19:5, 6 23:5, 7, 12	Board's 39:8 43:1, 12, 19 body 11:11 43:18 bond 37:7 books 21:12, 12 22:25 bottom 28:1 Brenda 16:21 bridge 44:17, 24 44:24 45:2, 8 45:14 brief 7:15 briefly 32:11 bring 18:14, 18 22:24 27:23 brought 48:17 Brown 3:19 buckle 9:15, 16 10:16 budget 46:10 budgeted 45:11 build 10:8 building 12:23 12:23 16:6, 9 bullet 42:18 business 36:7 48:5 businesses 45:6	Carolyn 30:16 carries 28:10 30:6 44:3 48:2 Carruthers 34:24 35:17, 21, 24 36:2, 5, 8, 10, 14 36:17, 19 37:3 37:7, 10, 21 38:1 case 8:13 9:6 10:8 20:22 28:17 31:11 32:24, 25 33:16 caseload 6:16 14:10 26:8 cases 5:25 6:1, 2 6:7, 25 13:19 14:13 29:16, 18 29:20 30:22, 22 30:23 32:17, 20 33:15 34:5 35:5 cash 44:21 Cass 22:3 Cause 35:25 36:13 Celia 2:2 3:18 32:10 35:1 42:23 cell 32:23 Central 1:17 CEO 17:19 certain 35:5 certainly 3:24 4:21 5:10 15:4 16:11 22:12 29:13 33:19 39:10 48:21 certificate 48:23 50:1 certify 50:8 chain 8:17 Chair 3:14 6:17 23:12 30:11, 13 32:3 33:24 38:17 40:20 46:20 Chairman 2:12 3:4, 7, 23 4:18 6:12, 15, 20 7:7 7:18 14:5 15:3 15:12, 16, 19	
calendar 42:20 call 8:11, 16 9:4 10:10 12:14 15:6 called 13:12 27:12, 14 calls 5:13 canvas 8:22 captured 8:24 car 16:23 19:21 careful 22:20 careless/reck... 45:23	C		

chosen 17:23
Chrisnet 9:7
Cindy 19:11,14
 21:19
circulate 21:14
circumstances
 37:9
citations 45:21
 45:21,23 47:10
citizen 5:17,17
 34:13 40:13
citizens 15:6
 25:23 29:23
 32:21
city 17:20 18:2
 18:3,6,8,11,17
 34:7 39:17
 45:16 46:8
city's 46:10
claim 43:9
claims 19:20
 33:15
class 41:6
clear 7:3 32:7
 38:19 39:4
clearly 33:6
 34:9 41:18
click 7:19
clicker 7:16
close 23:8
closed 6:1 35:10
 45:2
closer 46:16
closing 30:22
closure 45:7,14
code 15:10 37:14
CODIS 12:5
cold 40:15
collected 9:19
Collective 38:14
 39:19 42:15,16
 43:6
come 4:5,10,14
 4:20,24 15:8
 16:2 17:10,13
 17:16 19:3,7
 19:18 24:15
 32:14 34:21
 38:8 41:2
 48:11
coming 5:2 6:18
 6:18

command 33:10
 37:17 40:19
Commander 46:4
 47:3,3,13,21
 48:2,3
Commanders 5:11
Commencing 1:19
comments 49:1
commission 10:24
 20:5,17 44:11
 50:21
Commissioner 3:8
 6:13,14 14:6,7
 14:19,23 15:2
 18:24 22:11
 23:11,17,18
 24:1,2,9,10
 25:6,7 27:4,5
 29:9,10 34:2
 43:18,22 44:1
 44:13 46:21
 49:4,5
Commissioners
 1:2 2:4,9,11
 3:6,7 17:13
 19:5,7 23:6,7
 23:12,22 24:5
 24:13,16 28:8
 30:4 36:16
 42:19 44:13
 47:25 49:8
Commit 36:21
committed 10:23
commonly 11:14
 12:8
communicated
 45:12
communication
 32:16
communications
 17:12
community 12:20
 15:5
compared 5:19
competency 28:18
complaints 5:17
 5:18,19 6:4
 25:23
complete 8:16
 9:20 10:10
 28:16 50:13
completed 8:19

9:4 10:9 31:14
 33:9,9 37:23
completes 3:22
completion 36:13
complex 16:8
 28:13
compliance 26:14
computer 7:19
 50:11
concentrate 31:6
concentrated
 31:22
concern 6:8
conclude 14:3
concluded 49:11
concludes 6:11
 16:15 33:23
 48:5
concurrence
 37:20
condition 44:25
conduct 10:19
 11:2,6,9,12,18
 11:22,24 31:13
 37:13,17,18
 40:18
conducting 13:11
confessions 10:4
congratulate
 30:2
Congratulations
 30:6
consent 11:16
 26:2,15 32:11
 34:11
considerable
 29:19
considering 47:1
consisted 26:4
consistent 29:21
Conspiracy 36:21
constant 32:16
construction
 46:14
contact 13:2
 16:1 41:23
contacted 41:14
contention 43:7
contest 35:9
contested 34:20
continue 31:2
continuously

25:20
contract 41:20
Contractor 45:13
contract's 39:3
contrary 37:14
contravened
 36:16
contravention
 38:2,3,4
control 26:13
Controlled 36:21
 36:23
convene 40:21
conversation
 38:18
conversations
 18:13 33:8
cooperative
 46:18
copper 16:25
corner 19:16
Cornwall 40:12
correct 41:10
 43:7 50:13
corrections 32:2
costs 44:20 46:2
Council 16:21
counsel 35:8
 38:18,20 39:1
 39:4,7,9 41:6
 43:1,14,15
counseling 8:1
 12:22
count 5:19 36:20
 36:20,22 40:5
counted 20:25
counts 21:7
county 8:6,7,8
 10:7 13:5,7
 17:21,21 21:11
 34:13 35:23
 36:2,18 50:6
 50:20
couple 6:15 15:3
 31:19 34:19
course 3:24
 16:17 35:4
Court 3:21 37:1
courteous 40:6
 40:13
courtesy 39:22
cover 16:19

CPS 13:24
crack 22:8
created 26:19, 23
 28:23
crime 8:5, 16 9:4
 10:11, 15, 23
crimes 7:11, 14
 7:16, 21 9:3
 10:4 12:17, 25
 14:9 15:15
criminal 10:19
 11:2, 6, 7, 9, 12
 11:18, 22, 24
 36:11 37:19
 46:12
criminality
 32:12, 13
criminally 33:2
criteria 10:25
 26:22 28:25
critical 45:4
crossed 29:25
crossing 45:2
CSC 11:25
CSR 50:18
CSR-7042 1:21
current 30:20
currently 40:9
 44:25
Curry 20:7
custody 9:15, 22
 9:23, 24 36:11
 36:12
customer 41:6
cuts 14:1
cutting 16:24
Cynthia 36:25
C-A-R-R-U-T-H...
 35:17
C-I-N-D-Y 21:19

D

Darrah 19:11, 11
 21:19, 19, 22
 22:2, 13
date 12:7 31:15
 36:24 37:8
 38:13 45:12, 13
 45:15
dated 35:14
dates 45:19
Davis 3:16 30:11

30:12, 20 31:2
 33:23 34:17
day 6:16 19:20
 19:22 22:14
 31:24 41:4, 19
days 30:24 31:21
 31:21, 25 34:6
 41:16, 17 42:20
 45:9
deadline 31:20
deal 25:11 33:2
December 25:21
decision 39:21
 39:21 41:13
 43:1
decrease 5:21, 23
decree 26:3, 15
 32:11 34:11
deemed 45:4
defendant 12:1, 4
definition 33:2
 33:5
degree 10:19
 11:2, 6, 7, 9, 12
 11:23 36:20
delay 41:25 42:4
deliver 35:22
 36:6
Delivery/Manu...
 36:23
Deliver/Manuf...
 36:22
demarcation 7:2
demeaning 40:15
demeanor 6:9
 32:14
demonstrated
 28:18
denied 43:21
department 4:6
 5:5 6:25 14:9
 15:8 17:2, 25
 22:24 26:1, 2
 34:9, 14 36:15
 37:16 40:17, 22
 43:7 44:10, 15
 44:19, 22 45:24
 46:17
Department 's
 37:12
deputy 2:18 3:9
 7:8 16:13, 21

36:3, 7, 9 48:9
deserving 27:17
Despite 28:20
detail 18:18
detailing 45:18
details 18:10
detainees 40:7
determine 41:24
Detroit 1:2, 18
 2:4, 6 3:1 4:6
 5:5 8:9 13:7
 17:21 18:4, 7
 18:12, 18 23:12
 26:1 34:9
 36:15 37:15
 40:17 41:8
 44:21 45:24
 46:8, 17
Devay 4:4
different 18:4
 22:4 32:16
 38:19
difficult 5:6
 29:18
dignified 40:6
 40:13
direct 4:15
 15:14
direction 8:14
 45:1
Directive 37:16
 40:18
directly 16:8
 19:15
director 3:17
 46:5
disagrees 39:7
disc 9:2
disciplinary
 38:9
discussed 24:18
discussion 21:15
 27:9 32:6
 38:23 43:24, 25
discussions 6:24
 47:13
dismissal 42:22
dismissed 43:8
disruption 26:24
District 1:17
 6:5, 6 36:25
 37:5 40:10

47:4
DNA 12:3, 5
document 8:23
doing 5:5, 9, 9
 7:12, 14 31:22
 31:23, 23 47:17
dollars 18:3, 6
 18:17
domestic 8:2
 12:13, 25
Donald 41:8
Donnell 2:13 3:8
downtown 4:23
DPD 26:5 45:8, 12
 46:1
DPOA 35:8
draft 8:13
Drake 3:16 30:11
 30:12, 20 31:2
 33:23 34:17
drawn 7:3
driving 45:23
drug 12:11 22:6
 22:7 35:25
 36:13
dubious 17:22
due 37:18 38:20
duty 35:20 40:10
D-A-R-R-A-H
 21:20
D.C 7:10 16:15
 17:8 19:2
 48:10, 24

E

East 13:20
Eastern 6:5 40:9
economic 45:5
effective 26:18
 37:21
effectively 44:7
effort 31:22
efforts 46:18
egregious 37:18
either 32:22
election 20:5, 17
 20:23
eleven 41:16
eligible 20:25
 47:7
eliminated 31:6
Elizabeth 1:21

3:21 50:8,18
emergency 45:7
employers 11:4
encompassed
 13:20
encompassing
 12:22
endeavor 30:2
endorse 26:24
 29:4
enforcement 36:3
 37:14 44:16,23
 45:12,19 46:15
enhanced 46:15
enlighten 6:22
entered 40:25
entertain 23:14
 23:23 24:7
 48:9 49:3
entire 34:12
entirely 26:4
entirety 43:13
entities 34:7
especially 47:1
essentially
 10:15 11:7
 13:6
establishment
 46:18
Ethics 37:14
evaluate 31:17
 32:1
evaluations
 31:14,16
evening 17:18
everybody 20:13
 28:3
evidence 10:15
evidences 10:17
exact 45:11
examination 37:8
examinations
 8:10 13:10,12
Examiner 13:5
examiners 13:13
 13:14
example 10:24
exceed 45:11
excels 28:12
exception 26:3
exceptions 11:17
exhibit 40:5,12

existing 44:24
 45:25
expected 46:11
expecting 16:18
expenses 45:17
experience 28:19
expires 50:21
explain 41:21
explanation
 41:25 42:3,5
exposes 12:18
exposing 12:18
extended 26:6
extra 4:24
E4 42:18

F

facility 13:8
 35:25 36:9
fact 5:7 9:22
 29:15
factored 46:2
factors 33:7
facts 37:9
failed 40:12
failure 40:5
false 7:22
family 11:3 26:7
 26:17
far 24:21
Father 4:9
fault 38:20
favor 23:21 24:4
 24:12 28:6
 30:3 43:25
 47:23 49:7
February 26:5
 43:3
Federal 31:12
feel 12:15 14:4
fellow 40:7
felonies 35:7
felony 7:22
 10:20,24 37:1
Ferry 13:20
fewer 19:17,17
field 18:5
figure 21:15
figures 5:21
file 20:24 41:17
filed 6:1,2,4,7
 38:13 39:5

42:1 43:3,4
filing 41:11
fill 29:3
finally 24:7
 46:15
find 8:13,14
findings 43:13
 43:19
finds 28:16
fingerprints
 20:12
first 8:12 10:19
 11:2,7,9,23
 38:10
fit 10:25
floor 17:12
following 37:11
 40:4
footing 38:11
force 6:10,22
 7:2 17:23 32:3
 32:14 33:8
 36:4
forego 39:8
foregoing 50:9
forensic 13:10
 13:16,16
foresight 27:22
forgo 39:11
formal 24:19
formally 12:21
 26:11
forms 20:20
 22:16
Fort 44:16,23
forth 50:11
forum 48:16
forward 3:25
 24:21 27:21
 38:22 39:15
 48:8
found 41:2
four 11:24 27:13
four-hour 45:9
fray 27:20
free 14:4
front 24:16
 34:19
full 50:13
functions 28:20
fund 18:15
funding 46:2

funds 44:15,20
further 9:11,13
 36:7,9

G

game 4:23
gamma-hydroxy...
 12:8
gateway 22:6
gearing 31:13
general 12:19
 18:15 47:5
generally 28:13
gentleman 49:10
gentlemen 3:5
George 2:17 3:12
 3:15 24:24
 35:13
getting 47:16
GHB 12:7,9
ghost 21:23
giant 9:16
Gibson 8:25
give 6:19 17:14
 19:12 25:17
 29:7 35:2
 48:23
given 12:10
gleaned 48:19
go 7:4,7,17 8:9
 8:15 10:6
 13:22 15:21,22
 16:1,19 19:24
 20:7,10 21:2
 24:14 30:9
 32:13 38:12
goal 27:25
God 4:10,12,13
 4:15
Godbee 37:20,23
goes 7:25 10:11
going 3:11,25
 4:4 7:7 8:18
 14:3 17:4 18:6
 18:10,11,14,16
 18:20 19:1
 21:24 22:10
 25:9 39:18
 46:24,25
good 3:4 4:7
 7:13 10:4
 13:14 17:1,18

17:18 21:13
 41:7 42:5 47:3
government 34:7
Grace 13:9
grant 44:9, 11, 14
 46:23 47:9, 14
 47:18, 23
great 19:4 33:21
 47:22
greatly 39:25
grounds 43:8
groups 15:7 18:5
guess 6:20 20:22
 33:1 38:15
 46:24
guilty 41:1, 3

H

hand 25:17 29:8
handle 22:20, 25
 22:25 29:15
handled 12:13
 36:11
handles 32:4
handling 5:12
hands 32:22
Hanson 3:21
happening 27:24
happy 33:11
hard 13:4
hardship 4:24
head 8:19
hear 17:15 22:4
 38:15, 20, 23
 39:12, 16 43:25
heard 42:2 43:15
hearing 23:7
 41:24 42:20
hearts 4:11 28:2
Heavenly 4:9
heavily 31:7
help 21:2 24:23
 27:12 34:21
helped 27:10
helpful 33:14
 48:20
helping 13:15
helps 39:24
hereinbefore
 50:10
Herman 12:24
 16:7, 9

highest 29:22
highlight 25:14
highlights 25:1
hit 12:5 27:15
 40:16
hold 31:2
holding 31:9
 32:23
home 12:14
homes 9:15
homicide 8:2
Honorable 36:24
 37:4
hope 21:7, 23
 31:14
hoping 21:2
hospital 8:9
 9:19 13:8, 9
hostile 40:15
hours 45:20
Howard 41:8
hundred 25:23
husband 12:14

I

IA 7:5 32:13
 33:5, 17
ID 12:6 20:12, 13
 20:18
ideal 29:3
identified 12:5
identify 33:6
illegal 36:8
immediately 44:7
impact 46:11
impacting 46:10
impairs 12:9
imprisonment
 7:23 10:21
Inasmuch 42:24
incarcerated
 20:1, 3
incident 12:1
 17:7
including 26:10
 40:7
increase 46:9, 10
increased 45:7
 46:19
incur 4:23
Indecent 12:17
indicated 44:19

indicates 41:11
individual 31:3
indulge 30:13
informally 24:18
information 8:14
 9:10, 14 18:21
 19:4 48:19, 21
informed 16:23
 36:3
initially 32:4
initiative 18:2
 18:8 44:14
 46:6
initiatives
 12:20
injured 32:22
instance 9:13
instances 33:10
 35:8
intent 35:22
 36:6
interagency
 48:18
interest 9:25
 19:16
interesting 21:8
Interim 25:12
 27:7
interior 9:17
Internal 32:17
 32:23 35:19, 23
 36:1
interpretation
 43:6
interrogate 10:2
interview 13:3
 13:17, 22, 24
interviewed 14:1
introduce 3:12
 30:14
introductions
 3:22
investigate 7:21
 25:22 29:20
investigating
 32:24 40:16
investigation
 9:5
investigations
 5:25 28:13, 15
 32:5
investigative

10:6
investigator
 3:17 5:25 6:19
 6:21 25:11, 15
 25:16, 20 26:8
 26:20, 22 27:1
 27:2, 7 28:12
 28:21, 23, 25
 29:5, 6, 13, 21
 30:12, 15, 16, 16
 30:17 31:16, 18
 34:1
investigators
 7:1, 4 13:23
 26:6 27:23
 28:14, 17 31:11
 34:10, 15
invocation 4:5
invoice 46:3
involve 6:3, 7
 32:12, 13 35:7
involved 6:4
involves 11:8, 10
 29:18 47:1
iPad 24:22
Ishmal 17:19
issue 32:6, 7
issued 37:19
issues 31:12
 32:14
item 17:3
items 4:20 34:19
i.e 11:4 12:5

J

Jackie 20:7
jail 11:19 19:18
 20:13, 22 21:9
 21:25 22:19
 35:23 36:2
January 35:19
 36:15 41:13
 43:2
Jerome 2:12 3:6
Jessica 2:14
 23:11
Jesus 4:16
job 5:9 13:14
 28:2 30:1
 31:24 34:3
John 46:4
Johnson 9:1

Jones 7:11, 13, 14
7:20 14:8, 12
14:21, 25 15:10
15:14, 18, 24
16:6, 8, 12, 22
25:15 28:11, 12
28:15, 20, 24
29:2, 5, 7, 13, 21
40:23 42:12, 13
42:13 44:6
Judge 37:4
judgement 42:21
judo 41:6
July 40:4
jumps 47:9
June 50:21
Junior 37:23
40:14
Justice 17:25
26:2
justification
38:24 43:11

K

Kansas 21:2
keep 22:7
Ken 30:16
kid 21:4
Kids 13:16, 16
Kiefer 12:24
16:7, 9
kind 8:1 21:8
47:15
kit 9:9, 18 10:14
10:17
know 5:8 6:24
18:13 19:17, 22
19:23 20:8, 21
21:5, 6 22:9, 14
22:16 23:1, 2
24:15, 17 28:3
29:17 32:7
33:1 34:6 35:4
42:5 44:5
47:16 48:12
knowledge 28:25
42:9
knowledgeable
10:3
known 6:3 11:14
11:15 12:1, 8
12:21 13:19

26:11
knows 4:12
Koller 1:21 3:21
50:8, 18

L

L 37:22
lab 10:15, 18
lack 38:24
ladies 3:4 49:10
lane 45:1
lapsed 25:24
late 8:5 41:10
Laughter 48:14
Laundering 36:20
Law 37:14
Lawrence 25:12
25:19 44:6
lead 4:5, 15
leading 6:4, 8
13:25
learned 48:21
leave 26:6, 7, 17
Lee 2:18 3:10
7:8, 10 16:15
17:8
legal 38:11
legalized 22:6
legally 20:4
lend 42:21
Letitia 40:23
42:13
letter 24:16, 22
34:22 35:3, 14
41:22 44:20
Let's 24:14
25:16 30:9
level 26:20
28:23 29:22
licensed 13:13
Lieutenants 5:11
life 10:20
light 26:22
likelihood 46:17
limit 17:15
limitation 11:21
limitations
11:22, 23 12:4
limited 37:11
line 7:2 15:15
17:3 29:25
32:7, 11

lineups 9:20, 21
9:21, 23
link 9:17
Lisonga 30:17
literally 27:16
27:19, 24, 25
little 32:15
38:19
live 9:20, 21, 23
19:9, 15
loan 26:4
located 16:5
locating 7:25
location 22:1
45:20
Lodge 19:16
Loletha 3:17
long 47:14
longer 43:9
look 6:16 7:1, 4
27:24, 25 39:23
48:7
looked 22:12
looking 21:22
47:15
lot 32:6 33:19
34:7

M

M 36:25 37:5
magazine 21:12
Magistrate 36:24
mail 20:24 22:17
mailed 20:21, 22
22:21
main 16:9
making 13:4
man 19:20
management 31:11
Manager 3:20
mandatory 9:22
41:5
manner 5:13
28:11 40:6, 13
40:15
Manual 37:16
40:17
March 41:16 43:5
marijuana 22:6
35:22 36:6, 9
36:22, 23
marital 12:14

mark 31:24
Marvin 7:11
match 44:21
matter 9:22
24:14 35:4
36:11 43:8, 21
matters 4:3
16:19 17:10
24:17 32:12, 13
maximize 26:24
Mayor's 18:15
ma'am 7:19 19:8
21:17 23:4
34:22 44:3
McNair 38:10
40:3, 3, 9, 23
41:3, 10, 12, 22
42:3, 8 43:1, 16
43:20
McNair's 41:18
43:10
MDOT 44:15 45:4
45:8, 13, 17
46:3, 16 47:14
mean 22:8, 24
meaning 43:5
means 10:16
medical 8:21
9:10 26:7
medicinal 36:9
meet 26:2
meeting 1:3 3:6
4:22, 25 18:25
23:9, 15 31:3
48:6, 13, 20
49:3, 9, 11
Meetings 31:5
meets 26:21
28:24
member 2:13 11:3
16:21
members 30:14
40:7
men 5:4, 11 10:3
Michigan 1:1, 18
2:6 3:1 10:12
11:16 36:5
44:14, 18 50:4
50:20
mid 31:14
middle 19:8
Midwest 35:25

million 18:3,6
 18:17
 mind 47:12
 minutes 23:24
 24:7
 misdemeanor
 11:18
 mission 8:19
 mitigate 45:6
 model 15:20
 Moiseev 37:5
 moment 17:10
 Monday 17:3
 money 18:11,14
 18:19 22:17
 36:20 47:16
 Monitor 33:6
 monitors 6:24
 31:12
 monthly 5:18
 30:9 46:4
 months 31:19
 45:2
 morning 39:2
 mornings 31:4,5
 motion 23:14,24
 24:7 28:10
 30:6 44:3 48:2
 48:9 49:3
 motivated 10:11
 mouth 9:17
 move 3:25 4:2
 18:17 23:9
 24:1,9,21 27:4
 27:20 29:9,12
 38:22 39:15
 43:18 46:20
 49:4
 moved 23:17,19
 24:3,11 27:6,8
 43:23 46:22
 49:6
 moving 4:19
 34:11
 multiple 14:1
 multi-jurisd...
 36:4
 Myatt 4:5,8
 M-O-I-S-E-E-V
 37:5
 M-85 44:16,23

N

name 3:6 4:16
 17:14,19 19:10
 21:18
 Narcotic 36:3
 nature 18:20
 37:18
 near 41:15
 nearby 46:14
 necessary 32:2
 need 8:14 9:14
 20:15 22:5
 26:23
 needed 9:12
 neighborhood
 15:6
 never 8:5
 new 13:8 27:23
 30:2 48:5
 newly 37:19
 newspapers 21:10
 21:11
 Nickels 30:16
 night 14:14 21:4
 nonprofit 17:20
 nonprofits 18:5
 normally 12:12
 Northeastern 6:6
 Notary 50:19
 noted 26:16 34:4
 notice 31:23
 noticed 21:22
 notification
 8:17
 notified 35:20
 notify 8:18
 November 18:10
 18:16 40:11
 number 14:24
 15:6,12 29:18
 37:1 42:16
 nurse 13:5,14
 nurses 13:14
 Nursing 13:12

O

Oakland 21:11
 35:23 36:1,18
 Obama 17:22
 Obama's 18:9
 objectify 21:24

objection 23:20
 24:4 39:9
 observed 8:24
 obtained 10:16
 obviously 32:21
 41:16
 occasions 41:23
 OCI 25:21 26:5,5
 26:14,24 27:2
 27:9,11,20
 29:6 30:8,9,12
 32:14
 October 17:3
 22:14 31:10,15
 31:15 48:6
 Offender 10:13
 offenders 7:24
 10:12
 offer 42:3
 offered 43:10
 47:6
 office 3:9,20
 5:24 10:7
 18:15 34:10
 36:19 41:14
 Officer 9:6,11
 34:24 35:17,20
 35:24 36:2,5,8
 36:10,14,17,19
 37:3,7,10,13
 37:21,25 38:9
 39:4 40:3,3,8
 40:23 41:3,9
 41:12,18,22
 42:3,8,25
 43:10,16,20
 officers 6:3 9:8
 15:25 19:19
 29:18 32:22
 35:16 41:9
 44:22 45:8,18
 45:25 46:25
 47:6,17
 official 20:15
 22:23
 officially 19:25
 okay 6:20 7:5,20
 16:10 19:14
 22:13 23:3
 24:20 25:5,8
 30:15 39:24
 42:11

old 10:25 11:15
 11:20
 once 8:19 10:9,9
 15:24 27:13
 45:13
 open 5:25 17:11
 30:21
 opening 13:8
 operated 36:8
 operating 5:6
 operations 29:24
 opinion 29:2
 opposed 24:6
 28:9 30:5 31:7
 31:25 44:2
 48:1
 oral 17:12 38:21
 39:5,8,11,15
 order 41:21 45:6
 45:16
 organization
 17:20
 organizations
 18:4
 outreach 15:5
 outside 39:4,21
 outstanding 5:4
 28:2 30:1 34:3
 34:6
 oversee 46:1
 oversight 34:13
 overtime 44:20
 45:10,19,25
 47:2,5,6,7
 owned 36:8

P

pace 34:12
 package 9:5,10
 page 1:14 17:7
 Pamela 3:16
 30:12
 park 27:16
 part 17:23
 participate
 48:16
 particular 14:16
 17:6 47:9
 partnership 8:7
 parts 11:11
 12:19
 pass 17:4

Pastor 4:4, 8, 18
patients 4:22
patrol 45:20
 46:9
patrols 45:10
pay 4:25 34:20
 34:23 35:5, 16
 36:17 37:21, 25
 38:2, 4 41:4
 44:16, 20 47:2
payment 46:4
penalty 41:4
people 13:11
 15:21 17:16
 19:17, 18, 25
 20:8, 9 21:25
 22:7, 8, 15
percent 5:21, 22
 6:5, 5, 6, 6, 9, 9
 6:10, 10 14:21
Pereskevin 30:17
perform 29:1
performance
 31:18
performing 28:19
 29:22
period 5:20
 41:19
permanent 27:8
perpetrator 9:14
 11:3, 15 13:18
 13:19
person 9:24 10:9
 10:21 40:6
personal 37:7
Personally 39:14
Personnel 3:18
pertinent 8:13
Petersburg 22:2
petition 38:13
 41:18 42:1
 43:10
petitioner 39:16
phone 8:11 13:2
 41:15
photo 9:20, 25
physical 10:17
pick 13:2 35:24
piece 38:24
Pinckney 22:18
place 40:2 42:17
 50:10

plain 43:5
plate 27:15
plea 40:25
please 19:12
 28:7 34:22
pleased 5:3
pleasure 24:21
 25:5 27:3 29:8
 39:8 43:17
 48:3
podium 17:14
 19:7 34:21
 38:8 48:12
point 14:19
 32:23 42:18
police 1:2 2:4, 8
 3:5, 7, 18 4:6
 5:5 10:12 17:1
 17:13 19:5, 7
 21:3 22:24
 23:5, 7, 12 26:1
 29:24, 25 34:9
 34:13 35:15, 16
 35:20 36:15, 16
 37:15, 19, 22, 25
 38:9 40:3, 8, 17
 41:9, 9 42:18
 43:16, 19 44:22
 45:24, 25 46:17
policy 21:6
 34:14
polite 40:5, 12
poll 22:25
poor 44:25
Porter 3:17
posed 31:12
position 11:3
 29:3
positive 20:12
possession 35:22
 36:6
possible 9:18
 19:24
powerless 12:9
pray 4:13
precinct 16:2, 3
 35:18, 21 38:1
 46:5
precincts 15:20
prefer 9:21
preliminary 9:7
 35:2 37:7

preparations
 28:18
prepare 6:21
 17:5
prescheduled
 47:5, 7
presence 46:9, 10
present 2:16
 3:16 40:23
 42:10
presentation 4:1
 7:11, 12, 15
 14:3, 8 15:5
 18:19
President 17:22
pressing 26:23
pretty 10:4
 13:14
prevention 15:17
previous 14:24
pricey 5:1
prior 41:23
probably 33:17
problem 20:14
problems 20:13
procedure 6:9
proceedings 3:21
 50:10, 14
proceeds 12:16
product 25:25
professional 5:9
 5:13
professionalism
 27:21
program 7:24
progressed 26:14
project 45:4
 46:1, 5
promote 25:16
promotional
 24:17
promotions 25:2
 25:11
proof 33:16
proper 8:14
properly 12:10
 23:19 24:3, 11
 27:6 29:11
 32:18 43:23
 46:22 49:6
proposal 46:7
proposed 28:22

 28:24 44:14
prosecute 7:23
prosecutor 13:23
Prosecutors 10:7
Prosecutor's
 36:19
protocol 46:25
 47:4
proud 5:3
provide 8:1
 44:15
provided 41:12
 41:19 42:25
 44:22
provides 45:13
providing 46:16
Provision 42:15
 42:16
public 12:19
 29:17 48:13
 50:19
published 26:21
 28:24
punishable 7:22
 10:20 11:13, 19
purpose 18:15
 25:22
pursuant 40:21
push 22:5
put 9:25
putting 21:24
p.m 1:19 3:3
 40:11 48:7
 49:11
P54338 2:2

Q

quality 31:7
quantity 31:8
question 5:7
 14:8 22:11
 29:21 32:3, 20
 38:10, 16
questioning 39:3
questions 6:13
 13:25 14:4
 15:4 18:23
 33:25 46:23
 47:23
Quinn 3:20
quite 12:13, 17
 29:19 30:24

quorum 3:25 4:1
 4:2 16:18,18
 17:11 23:13
quota 47:11
quotas 47:15
Q-tip 9:16

R

radio 21:11
raided 36:4
Ralph 37:20,22
rape 11:14 12:7
 12:22
rapes 12:14
rate 45:19,25
reach 17:6 31:24
reached 39:4
read 21:16 24:22
 25:1 35:10
 42:14 44:11
reading 32:20,25
 37:23 44:5
really 20:5 22:5
 29:13,15
reason 32:19
 39:12
reasonable 41:24
receipt 42:20
receive 4:2 5:8
 8:11 16:18
received 5:18
 34:5,23 43:1
receiving 8:9
 13:7 46:25
recommendation
 26:25 28:7
 29:4 42:24
 43:15
recommendations
 35:6
recommended 37:2
 37:6,10 41:4
 43:12
record 3:15
 19:13 21:18
 23:11 24:24
 30:13 34:4
 35:11,13 41:8
 41:11 42:7,14
 42:14 44:4,8
recording 3:20
records 9:10

41:15
redistributed
 26:9
redistribution
 26:12
reduce 27:12
reduced 50:11
reduction 31:20
Refresh 16:4
regarding 7:15
 8:11 16:22
 34:23 46:23
 47:14
regards 43:16,20
 44:4
register 20:1,14
 22:15
registering 20:9
Registry 10:13
REGULAR 1:3 2:13
Regulations
 37:12
reimburse 45:16
Reimbursement
 45:23
relates 6:22,25
 7:1 15:4,20
 17:6 24:17
 29:22 34:13
 38:9
relationship
 46:16
relative 22:23
released 36:10
 37:6
Replacement
 44:17,24
report 4:19 5:15
 5:17 6:11,18
 7:8 8:5,5 9:7
 9:7 10:6,11
 15:22,25 16:16
 30:9,10 33:23
 34:5
reported 14:13
 14:14,22,25
 50:9
REPORTER 50:1
reporting 3:22
 16:2
reports 5:7 7:22
 31:7,20 32:1

33:8
represented
 40:22,24
representing 3:9
represents 5:20
 5:22
request 20:20,20
 36:16 37:24
 38:22 47:9,24
requested 38:21
 39:6
requesting 37:20
 42:1
requests 35:6
require 45:17
reserved 28:14
residents 45:5
 46:13
resolution 25:2
resolve 25:23
respecting 29:23
respond 8:8 16:3
 22:11
responded 9:8
 35:23
response 17:2,5
 45:7
responses 33:10
Responsibility
 7:20
restraint 45:21
restricted 44:25
retirement 26:17
 26:23
retrieve 36:2
retrieves 9:1
revealed 36:7
Reverend 22:18
review 32:1
 33:14 46:3
reviewing 32:21
right 4:4 12:23
 14:13 19:7
 20:24,24 23:7
 25:8,9 27:8,24
 29:23 30:20
River 44:17
Robert 3:19
Room 2:5 48:7
Rosalyn 30:15
roster 47:5,7
Rouge 44:17

routinely 28:12
rule 40:4
rules 11:8 37:12
run 40:16
Ryan 34:24 35:17
 35:20 37:25

S

Safe 8:6,7,9
 13:7
safety 46:13
SAK 10:14
sample 21:14
scene 8:16 9:5,8
 15:25
scenes 16:1
schedule 13:20
scheduled 37:8
 45:13
schedules 5:2
scope 7:15
Screen 36:14
Screening 35:25
search 9:15
second 11:6 17:7
 19:15 22:2,3
 23:18 27:5
 34:4 46:21
 49:5
seconded 27:7
Secretary 2:17
 3:11,14,15
 5:14,16 6:12
 6:17 7:5,6
 20:16 24:20,24
 24:25 35:3,10
 35:12,13,14
 38:6 49:2
Secretary's 5:17
section 23:8
Sections 40:21
see 4:7,25 22:18
 42:10 49:10
seeing 23:8
 43:25 48:8
seek 8:21
seeks 45:8
send 9:2 41:22
Senior 25:11,12
 25:16 27:1
 28:14,20,23,25
 29:5

sent 8:17 46:3
sentenced 19:25
 20:4
September 1:20
 3:2 23:16,25
 24:8 26:18
 35:15 37:8,22
 44:18
Serda 46:4 47:3
 47:4,13,21
 48:2,3
Sergeant 3:20
 7:11,13,14,20
 8:25 9:1 14:7
 14:12,21,25
 15:10,14,18,24
 16:6,8,12 46:1
Sergeants 5:11
Series 37:16
 40:18
serve 46:5
served 25:20
service 6:10
 41:6
Services 3:22
serving 3:8
session 35:10
set 40:2 47:11
 50:10
setting 34:12
seven 19:19
sex 7:11,14,16
 7:21 9:2 10:3
 10:13 12:17,25
 14:9 15:15
sexual 7:21 8:6
 8:8,12 9:9,18
 10:14,17,19
 11:2,6,7,9,12
 11:18,22,24,25
 12:7 13:5,12
 14:14,15,22,25
sexually 10:11
 12:16
shame 48:12
Shebil 17:25
shift 45:9
Shonee 38:10
 40:3,3,8 41:9
 43:16,20
shop 33:17,17
show 9:25
showed 20:18
showing 5:8
shown 34:10
sides 39:16
signed 37:1,22
 41:12
similar 46:18
sir 3:23 4:7,8
 5:16 7:6 14:5
 15:2,3,10,14
 15:18 16:11
 19:4 25:2 28:3
 28:10 30:18
 37:23 42:11
 44:3,12 48:10
 48:24
sit 7:18 13:24
situation 16:22
sixth 18:8
skill 29:1,19
slide 7:17
Sloan 30:17
social 45:5
sole 25:22
solid 38:11
somebody 7:18
 20:9 22:18
someone's 9:17
soon 26:23
sorry 19:10
 21:17 25:13
 42:17
Southfield 36:5
Southwest 47:4
span 26:13
SPEAKER 19:9
speaking 40:14
Spec 40:8
Special 26:11
speed 45:21
 47:19
speeding 47:10
spike 14:15
spreadsheet
 45:17
Squad 25:22,25
 26:4,12
SS 50:5
staff 3:12 30:14
 31:13,23
stand 25:9 28:3
 29:7 38:3,5
standard 29:22
standing 25:10
stands 10:14
Stanley 40:14
start 45:11,15
state 1:1 10:12
 11:16 20:17
 23:2 44:18
 50:4
statement 13:4
statements 9:9
statistics 30:21
status 25:24
 26:25 27:12
 29:5 44:6,7
statute 11:20,21
 11:23 12:4
statutory 11:14
steal 16:24
stenographically
 50:9
stepped 27:15
stepping 48:22
Stolberg 39:1
 40:24,25 41:7
 41:8 42:9
stones 13:1
stop 47:10
stops 45:20
storm 27:19
straight 34:5
strained 26:13
street 5:12
 44:17,23
strong 18:2
stronger 18:19
strongly 33:18
stuff 21:16
subject 15:9
 35:16
submitted 10:17
 30:22 31:21
 32:1
substance 36:21
 36:23 38:25
suffice 25:1
suggest 39:15
summary 45:17
superiors 8:18
 9:5
supervised 25:21
supervising 26:6
 26:11 27:2,7
supervision
 26:13 50:12
supervisor 25:12
 25:13,13,20
 26:10,16,22
 27:9
supervisors 26:4
 26:9 31:10,17
Supervisory
 26:19
supervisor's
 26:8 31:5
support 24:2,10
 29:9,10 42:21
 43:22
supported 23:20
 24:4,12 29:12
 43:24 46:23
supposed 7:1
 20:2
sure 8:21,22
 32:17 38:11
surrounding 32:6
Susan 37:4
suspect 10:8
 12:3
suspects 10:2
suspend 36:17
suspended 36:14
suspension 34:20
 34:23 35:5,16
 37:21,25 38:2
 38:4 41:4
swab 9:16,16,17
swap 10:16
sworn 26:4

T

take 4:8 13:21
taken 1:16 9:8
 19:18
takes 29:19
talent 29:20
talk 8:20 13:16
 13:16 15:8,16
 15:20 18:5,10
 18:14,16 21:9
 33:11,20 34:24
 48:18
talked 13:6 39:2
talking 18:1,4,9

tardiness 43:11	34:3, 9, 12	11:10	17:1 24:15
tardy 38:19 39:3	38:18 39:1, 2, 9	tough 29:15	41:14 42:2
target 31:15	Third 11:12	town 21:23	uniform 40:10
targeted 46:15	36:20	traffic 44:16, 22	unit 16:3, 5
task 17:22, 23	thorough 28:16	45:2, 20 46:12	units 6:3
36:4	thoroughness	46:15 47:10	unknown 6:3
tasks 7:15	29:14	training 31:9	unmatched 28:19
Taylor 2:14	thought 20:11	transcription	Unprofessional
12:23 16:6	48:19	50:12, 13	37:17 40:19
23:11, 18 24:1	thoughts 4:11	transferring	update 6:19
24:9 25:7 27:5	three 11:24	27:22	upheld 43:13
29:9 34:2	14:10, 12, 16	transport 35:24	uphold 43:19
43:22 46:21	26:9 27:13	Transportation	use 32:14 33:8
49:5	30:23	44:15, 19	utilize 9:17
teacher 11:4	throw 13:1	traps 47:19	
Team 26:11 36:4	Thursday 1:20	tremendous 31:24	V
teams 31:3	23:15, 24 24:8	tremendously	vacancy 26:19
teasing 48:13	31:4, 5 48:6	27:11	28:23
telephone 41:23	time 3:13, 25 4:3	trended 14:10	variables 33:7
tell 41:15	4:9 5:14 7:9	trial 40:2, 20	various 48:17
ten 12:1, 5 14:21	8:23 13:2, 4	41:2, 13 43:1	verbal 41:6
tend 12:11	14:4, 16 17:11	43:12, 19	45:22
terms 26:2	17:15, 17 18:19	tried 41:22	versus 7:4 15:21
Terry 17:18, 19	20:23 21:1	trigger 33:10, 11	viability 45:5
19:2	23:9, 14 27:14	trooper 27:18	viable 43:9
thank 3:14, 23	28:16 29:19	true 50:13	viaduct 19:15
4:8, 10, 18, 21	30:9 31:25	truth 4:16	Vice 2:14 23:12
5:1, 10 6:12	38:7 39:5, 13	trying 16:24	vicinity 44:23
7:5, 10, 19 14:5	40:2, 25 42:17	31:24	46:14
14:7 15:2	44:9 47:14	turn 8:25	victim 7:24 11:1
16:11, 12 17:8	48:8 49:2	turned 9:11	11:14, 20 12:9
18:22, 24 19:4	50:10	39:12	12:21, 25
21:21 23:3, 4	timeliness 38:23	TV 21:11	victims 7:25 8:8
28:1, 10 30:1	timely 28:16	twelve 40:11	8:20 10:1 13:3
30:10, 11, 17, 19	43:2	twenty 41:17, 19	13:10, 15, 17
33:22 34:14, 17	times 5:7 10:5	42:20	victim's 12:2, 6
34:18 38:5, 6	14:2 27:14	two 11:19, 24	video 8:23, 23, 25
42:11, 22 43:14	45:7	14:10, 12, 24	8:25 9:1
44:3, 3, 12 48:2	title 28:20, 22	45:3, 8	videotaped 13:22
48:4, 15, 22, 24	today 3:8 4:10	two-minute 17:15	violation 37:15
49:1, 2, 2, 9	4:15, 22 5:2	type 9:15 10:5	40:17
thing 8:12 10:5	30:21 40:1, 1	27:21, 22 47:11	violations 37:11
20:15 22:15	40:23, 25 42:8		40:5 46:12
47:8	today's 23:15	U	violence 8:3
things 4:12 11:4	41:24	unbecoming 37:13	12:13, 25 22:4
12:11 18:20	Tolbert 48:9, 10	unbelievable	violent 22:4
22:5, 8	48:24	20:6	virtual 15:20
think 4:25 6:17	told 21:3	understand 29:24	visibility 46:11
12:10 19:19	total 30:21	understanding	visible 46:9
20:8, 12 22:5	45:20, 20, 21, 21	29:24 32:5	vital 11:10
22:25 24:25	45:21, 22, 22	38:12	12:18
27:13 30:24	touching 11:8, 10	unfortunately	vote 20:1, 2, 4, 25

21:7 35:11	42:23, 24	witnesses 8:20	1,089 14:14
voting 4:3, 20	Washington's	woman 5:12	1,361 6:2
16:19 24:19	26:25 29:4	women 5:4 10:3	1,400 14:25
<hr/>	Washtanaw 17:21	Woodward 1:16	10th 31:10
W	way 5:10 21:24	work 5:4 9:12	100 37:16 40:18
<hr/>	39:22	10:7 15:23	102.3 37:16
want 4:21 5:3, 10	Wayne 8:6, 7, 8	17:24 26:14	40:18
17:5, 11 21:3	10:6 13:5, 7	28:19 29:1	1141 16:6
24:18 25:9, 11	17:21 50:6, 20	44:16 45:8	1151 12:23
25:14 27:10	ways 4:16	48:18	12 6:6 13:17
30:8 38:10	weapon 11:1	worked 33:5	40:4
42:14 44:4	weathered 27:19	38:14 45:18, 19	12th 41:16
47:15 48:15, 22	Wednesday 31:10	worker 13:24	12-95833 37:1
48:23	week 30:23 45:9	workers 46:13	13 6:5 10:21, 25
wanted 4:24 15:7	49:10	working 17:22	11:15, 20
21:5	weekly 31:3, 4	31:21 33:5	13th 23:25
wants 12:15	weeks 30:23	34:8 46:16	1300 2:5 48:7
Warfield 2:12	45:10 48:17	47:17	132 5:20
3:4, 6, 23 4:18	welcome 3:5 7:6	wouldn't 21:10	14 6:10
6:12, 15, 20 7:7	17:9	writing 33:14	1429 40:9 43:20
7:18 14:5 15:3	went 20:16, 17	writings 29:14	15 11:13
15:12, 16, 19	22:18 26:6	<hr/>	15th 31:15
16:4, 7, 10, 13	we'll 4:2 9:25	Y	16 6:10 10:22
16:17 17:9	10:10 13:20, 21	year 14:17, 17, 20	11:1, 17
18:22, 25 19:3	16:3 17:10	years 10:25	16th 41:13 43:2
19:10, 12 21:17	22:12 33:11	11:13, 15, 17, 19	17 5:22 13:18
21:21 22:1, 10	49:10	11:20 12:1, 6	179 6:7
23:4, 19, 23	we're 3:11, 25	13:17 14:11, 13	18 45:2
24:3, 6, 11, 14	4:22 7:3 12:22	14:16, 24 21:10	199 30:21
25:4, 8, 19 27:6	14:21 17:20	25:24 45:3	<hr/>
28:6, 9 29:11	18:4, 16 31:9	year-to-date	2
30:5, 8, 19	31:13, 22 32:16	5:21 6:1, 1	2nd 11:21
32:19 33:13, 21	40:1	yesterday 20:5	20th 24:8
33:25 34:3, 18	we've 8:19 9:4	yield 4:11	2002 11:21
35:12 37:24	10:16	young 19:19 20:8	2010 25:21 37:15
38:7 39:11, 18	whichever 12:2	21:4	40:11
39:24 42:7, 11	White 2:13 3:8	<hr/>	2011 5:20, 22
43:14, 23 44:2	6:13, 14 14:6, 7	Z	36:18 40:4
46:22 47:8, 19	14:19, 23 15:2	zero 30:23 34:5	2012 1:20 3:2
47:22 48:1, 4	18:24 22:11	zone 44:16	5:18, 22, 24 6:2
48:11 49:1, 6, 9	23:17 24:2, 10	<hr/>	6:4, 7 23:25
warnings 45:22	25:6 27:4	\$	24:8 26:5
warrant 36:12	29:10 43:18	\$10,000.00 37:6	35:15, 19 36:15
37:1	44:11, 13 49:4	\$160,000.00	37:3, 8, 22
warrants 9:15	wife 12:15, 16	44:21	41:16 43:3, 5
wash 16:23	Williams 40:14	\$40.00 4:25	44:18 48:6
Washington 2:2	wires 16:24	\$84 18:3, 6, 17	2013 45:15
3:18 6:23 19:2	wise 4:12	<hr/>	2018 50:21
32:8, 10, 10	wish 17:12 19:5	1	21st 12:2, 6
33:4, 18 34:15	19:6 23:5, 6	1 1:14 37:17	22 36:18
34:21 35:1, 2	witness 9:9	40:5, 8 45:15	221 5:25
38:8, 17 39:14		50:21	23 37:3
39:20 40:1			

23rd 43:5
24 37:8
26 6:3 36:15
 40:11
27 3:2 6:9 30:22
27th 1:20 23:16
 35:15 37:22
28 6:9

3

3:00 48:7
3:04 3:3
313 2:7 15:10,13
328 2:5
328A 48:7

4

4 40:19
4th 44:18 46:5
 48:6
4:06 49:11
40 13:20
46th 36:25 37:5
48 5:21
48226 1:18 2:6

5

5th 35:19 43:3
50 1:14
596-1835 2:7
596-1950 15:11
 15:13

6

6 6:6 12:23 16:6
6th 6:5
6:09 1:19
617 35:18,21
 38:1

7

7 45:9
7.9 37:16 40:18
7042 50:18
71107 40:21
7310 1:16

8

8th 17:3 18:10
 18:16,25 35:18
 35:21 38:1
80 31:21,24

45:10
882 5:21 6:1
894 5:22

9

9 42:16
9th 22:14
90 6:16 30:24
 31:21,25 34:6
900 14:18
91 5:19 6:2,7
950 14:17